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Aramit Groupis contributing the Port City Chattogram’s development activities since 1963 with its
various building material products like Cement Sheet , Cement, Aluminium Profiles, Stainless Steel
Pipes and Alu Composite Panels.

It's a story of developing Chattogram for 56 Years.

Aramit Cement Limited, a sister concern of Aramit Group, is situated at 53, Kalurghat Heavy
Industrial Estate, P. O:Mohara, Chattogram, Bangladesh. Aramit Cement Limited is a leading
manufacturer of various types of cement in Bangladesh. The factory was incorporated on 19t
August 1995 as a public Limited company by shares, with the technical collaboration of a 2, 10,000
MT Installed Capacity per years. The production started on 10" November 1999 and the product
brand name was registered as ' Camel Brand ' cement that earned the confidence of consumers
because of its quality. Later on, Aramit Cement Limited established and started 2" unit on 1st
January 2017 with capacity of 3, 00,000 MT per year. Now the total production capacityis 5, 10,000
MT per year.

Aramit Cement Limited imports the best quality clinkers, slag, limestone and gypsum from
renowned miners, exporters & suppliers from Iran, Thailand, China, Japan, Indonesia and Vietnam
etc. We strictly control the production by continuous testing in our well-equipped laboratory by our
highly experienced chemists and technicians. Our production process is computerized which
ensure us quality products.

Aramit Cement Limited is the forward looking organization and has expanded its business beyond
the borders by exporting to India, Myanmar since 2005. Monthly consignments are being exported
to Tripura & Meghalaya. Aramit Cement Limited is among the first few exporters to enter Myanmar.
Aramit Cement is exporting both Portland Slag Cement (PSC) and Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC,
43 Grade) complying fully with Bureau of Indian Standard (BIS).

Aramit Cement Limited is producing Portland Composite Cement (PCC-AM), Portland Composite
Cement (PCC-BM), and Ordinary Portland cement (OPC) and Portland Slag Cement (PSC) with
Separate Silos & Packing Machines.



*Be the first choice of all users.
*Be the Market leader.

*To be regarded as the best cement company

in the country through quality, innovation,
technology and modern management,
thereby contributing to the social and
economic development of Bangladesh.
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Gompany Profile

Union Bank Limited
HISTORICAL HIGHLIGHTS Muradpur Branch, Chattogram.
1. Year of Establishment 1995 South Bangla Agriculture Bank Limited
2. Technical Collaboration Agrabad Branch, Chattogram.
Agreement with CAMC, China 1995 Meghna Bank Limited

3. Trial Production 18 August 1992 Agrabad Branch, Chattogram.
4. Commercial Production:Unit-1 10 November 1999 NRB Global Bank Limited

Unit-2 01 January 2017 Agrabad Branch, Chattogram.

. Rupali Bank Limited
Registered Office & Faaon" Rupali Sadan Branch, Chattogram.
53, Kalurghat Heavy Industrial Estate National Credit & Commerce Bank Limited
PO :Mohara, Chattogram, Bangladesh. Katungonj Branch, Chattogram.
Tel :(88031) 671950, 670473, 670368, 672516 Al-Arafahielami Bard Limited
Fax:(88031) 671583 Muradpur Branch, Chattogram.
E-mail : info@aramitcement.com Basic Bank Limited
www.aramitcement.com Jubilee Road Branch, Chattogram.
Commercial Bank of Ceylon

Share Office Agrabad Branch, Chattogram.
Green View Apartment, Flat-6J, Fifth Floor (North Side) Eastern Bank Limited
House-39, Road-24,Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212 Anderkilla Branch, Chattogram.
Tel: (88-02) 9887176, 9881095, Fax : (88-02) 9851551 One Bank Limited

Agrabad Branch, Chattogram.
Premier Bank Limited

Chawkbazar Branch, Chattogram.
BANICERS State Bank of India
Hoo plaza Jublee Road, Chattogram.

E-mail : shares@aramitgroup.com

Jamuna Bank Limited
Agrabad Branch, Chattogram.
Sonali Bank Limited INSURANCE

Kalurghat I/E Branch, Chattogram. Karnaphuli Insurance Company Limited

Standard Bank Limited Suraiya Mansion, 30 Agrabad, Chattogram.
Khatungonj Branch, Chattogram. Janata Insurance Co. Ltd.

Janata Bank Limited Aktaruzzaman Center, Agrabad, Chattogram.
Corporate Branch, Northern General Insurance Co. Ltd.

Sk. Mujib Road, Chattogram. Jubilee Road, Chattogram.

AB Bank Limited South Asia Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bahaddarhat Branch, Chattogram. Khatungonj, Chattogram.

Bank Asia Limited Sonar Bangla Insurance Co. Ltd.

Agrabad Branch, Chattogram. Agrabad, Chattogram.

United Commercial Bank Limited AUDITORS

Bahaddarhat Branch, Chattogram. Shafiq Basak & Co.

Sacial Islami Bank Limited Chartered Accountants

Jubilee Road Branch, Chattogram. National House (1* Floor), 109 Agrabad C/A,
First Security Islami Bank Limited Chattogram-4100, Bangladesh

Agrabad Branch, Chittagong. 7~ ~
Mutual Trust Bank Limited FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Kalurghat I/E Branch, Chattogram.

Islami Bank Limited 1 Authorised Capital Tk 500.00 Million
Jubilee Road Branch, Chattogram. 2 Paid-up Capital Tk 338.80 Million
Pubali Bank Limited 3 Quoted Price per Share

Bahaddarhat Branch, Chattogram. DSE-30.06.2020 Tk 11.90

Exim Bank Limited CSE-30.06.2020 Tk 12.80

Agrabad Branch, Chattogram. DSE-17.11.2020 Tk 14.40

United Commercial Bank Limited CSE-17.11.2020 Tk 15.00

Agrabad Branch, Chattogram. X B

Premier Bank Limited
Khatungonj Branch, Chattogram.



Gompany Profile

SHARE HOLDING POSITION (30.06.2019)

Number of Number of Taka
Share holders Shares
Sponsors 4 15970353 159.703.530
Institutions &
General Public 4.460 17.909.647 179.096.470
4,464 33,880,000 338,800,000

SHARE HOLDING POSITION (30.06.2020)

Number of Number of Taka
Shareholders Shares
Sponsors 4 15970353 159,703,530
Institutions &
General Public 4.510 17.909.647 179.096.470
4,514 33.880,000 338.,800.000

Management Ratios

aramit cement limited

01 July 2019 || 01 July 2018
to to
30 June 2020 || 30 June 2019
A) Liquidity & Solvency Ratios
1. Current ratio 0.82:1.00 0.85:1.00
2. Acid test ratio 0.79 : 1.00 0.82:1.00
B) Operating Ratios
1. Cost of sales to sales % 79.23 81.67
2. Operating expenses to sales % 8.79 7.59
C) Profitability Ratios
1. Gross profit to saks % 20.77 18.33
2. Net profit/(loss) before income tax to sales % (6.66) (7.77
3. Net profit/(loss) after mcome tax fo sales % (12.02) (9.37)
4. Earning per share (Basic) Taka (6.86) (5.13)
D) Activity Ratios
1. Inventory turnover ratio Times 12.17 9:37
2. Inventory holding period Month 0.99 1.28







WELERg
ARAMIT CEMENT

Notice is hereby given that the 24+ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Aramit Cement Limited will be held
on Tuesday the 22nd December 2020 at 12.00 noon through Digital Platform (in pursuant to the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchanges Commission’s order No. SEC/SRMRC/04-231/25 dated
08.07.2020) to transact the following businesses and to adopt necessary resolutions:

NOTICE OF THE
24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

AGENDA
1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Directors’ Report, Audited Financial Statements and Auditors’
Report thereon for the year ended 30th June 2020.
2. Toelect/re-elect Directors of the company.
3. Toappoint Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 and to fix their remuneration.
4. To appoint Practicing Professional Accountant or Secretary to abtain certificate for compliance of
Corporate Governance for the financial year 2020-21 and to fix their remuneration.
5. Toapprove transactions for loans or advance to associate companies.
6. Totransact any other business with the permission of the Chair.
By order of the Board
Chattogram
28, November 2020.
(Syed Kamruzzaman, FCMA)
Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. The Shareholders whose names will appear in the Share Register of the Company or in the Depository
Register on Record Date i.e. Wednesday, 25th November 2020 will be entitled to attend the 24t
Annual General Meeting.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend
and vote in his/her stead. The Proxy Form duly stamped must be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company not later than 72 hours before the time fixed for the meeting. Members may download
Proxy Form from the Company's website.

3. Members are requested to update their relevant information through their respective Depository
Participant (DP) before the “Record Date”.

4. Link for Joining in AGM through Digital Platform is https://aramitcem24thagm.digitalagmbd.net
which will be opened before 72 hours from the time (22nd December, 2020 at 12.00 noon) fixed for
holding Annual General Meeting. Members can join the Virtual Annual General Meeting using their
Laptop, PC, Mobile or Tab providing their respective 16-Digit BO ID and No. of Shares.

5. In compliance with BSEC Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20 June,
2018:

i.  Annual Report, Attendance Slip and Proxy Form along with the Notice are being sent in soft form to
the members’ registered e-mail address linked with their respective BO ID.

ii. The members who don't have e-mail address linked with their BO ID are requested to send their
respective e-mail address to acl@aramitgroup.com to enable us to send the e-annual report
2019-20.

iii. Members are requested to inform us in written who want to collect the printed copy of the Annual
Report from the Company Secretary.

6. The Annual Report 2019-20 is available in the Company's website - www.aramitcement.com linked
also with the websites of both Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.



Message From The Desk of
Managing Director

Dear Shareholders

Assalamualaikum Wa Rahmatullah

On behalf of the Board of Directors | would like to express my gratitude to all the
respective Stakeholders for their continuous support to achieve the present performance
of our company. | feel that you all have seen the annual report for the year 2019-2020
containing Directors’ report along with the auditor’s report for the year 2019-2020 which
was forwarded to your e-mail address as well as uploaded same in our company’s website.
Our performance of the company was good during pre-pandemic period but with the
impact of COVID-19, all our hopes and aspirations ended in hollow which we could not get
ride of this affect. Moreover, despite some sluggishness in economy we remain confident
and optimistic about our competitive position and our ability to generate attractive
financial results.

Despite many odds and a very unhealthy competition in the cement market, we made
delivery of 3.27 lac Metric Ton which is a bit lower than last financial year and could not
achieve positive in terms of profitability due to financial expenses accompanied with
certain inhibiting factors.

However, we have adopted some realistic measure in current period to move out of worst
scenario of financial performance in near future.

| would like to extend my thanks and appreciation for the management and all levels of
employees working in the company whose sincere and dedicated services brought the
company to an appreciable level.

Sincere thanks are accorded to Board of Directors for their continuous support for survival
specially during pandemic period.

In the end | would like to express my gratitude to the valued Shareholders for rendering
support to continue our path towards the way of improving the position.

Q{,&.MMEZRM
Rukhmila Zaman
Managing Director



Board of Directors

Alhaj S. M. Alamgir Chowdhury
Chairman

Ms. Rukhmila Zaman
Managing Director (CEO)

Ms. Shukla Das
Director

Mr. Abdul Kuddus
Director

Mr. Khorshedul Alam

Mr. Warasuzzaman Chowdhury
Director

Independent Director

Mr. Syed Kamruzzaman, FCMA Mr. Muhammed Shah Alam, FCMA
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer




Re-Appointed —
B_oard 0' ‘.:D.irec1;or
nl'ectn rs Age: 58 Years

Nationality: Bangladeshi

2019-2020 Date of Appointment: 09th September

2017

Nominated By : Investment Corporation

of Bangladesh.

Qualifications:

Ms. Shukla Das did her B.Com. (Honours)

and M.Com in Management from Dhaka

University.

Working Experience:

She is a permanent employee of

Investment Corporation of Bangladesh
_' and presently working as deputy General
. | Manager. She is an expertise on project
KHURSHEDUL ALAM analysis and financial _statements:
Di-réc-tor-'” - . ' She also traveled various countries of the

i world namely Australia, Canada, India, and

Age: 59 Years Singapore with a view to perform her
Nationality: Bangladeshi

Komirated s Aramit Linited various responsibilities assigned by

Qualifications: department.
Mie Rourshedil Tilam dig kis Directorship of other Companies:

1. Bastu Shilpo
Bachelor Degree from Commerce. 5. Misacloinduchrize Lia
Working Experience:.

He is Managing Director of Pacific
Ocean Lines & POL Internaitonal.
He is an ambitious & dynamic
entreprenur & playing an important
role in business.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Bismilla-hir-Rahmanir Rahim

Honorable Shareholders

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you
all on behalf of the Board of Directors to the
24% Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Now | would formally present before you the
Directors’ Report,  Audited Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with BAS
and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year
ended 30 June 2020 for your kind consideration
and approval.

Preface

Your Company has completed a successful year
of commercial operation. During the period, the
Company sold out its product “Camel Brand
Cement” both in local market and export to
India, Karnaphuli Export Possessing Zone &
Chittagong  Export Possessing  Zone.
Management of the Company made
tremendous effort to popularize the Brand both
in local and export market overcoming all
sethacks and unstable conditions prevailing
there.

Sales volume slightly decreased during the
period as compared to last year due to
lockdown declared by Government for COVID
-19  pandemic simultaneously financial
performances is not satisfactory and the net
loss after tax made for the year 2019 -20 is
Tk-232,303,901.

Production

During the period your Company was able to
produce a total of 327,164 metric tons of
cement which was 64.15% of installed capacity.
However, achievement of production is not up

“ffsFegeT effsrame

Vo G 030 A HAE G G

TG RIRRETT
@ AfISERT AR A (AT WG(E 98 38 ©F
FEF YR TS AR SR AW S G
(F AN TG AW | @eF N S T
TS Gk ST G SifabEeqeaa gferan, 9o
G 00 R FRifFEe Wfds el am FRrstae
aifrawe TogH S |

e s

RIS (@ Afdfens Tenme e (e <3
ST IRF T FLACE | 2 IR WT (FE 32F
/] “HFIT IS PG wrea aEd faew Fae
G Srave Feif FaTR | G2 CHRCa s i 91T 8
& eIl A @ e A @ 3fe s
ARG TG A (58] SITACE |

3030 I A (@FIfeT -3y TENEE FREE SHHE
oS FEO WAR IR 035-200 HfHe TOTH

292,909 50d/=BIF |
B

SIANCAT (AT SCETDF CRATCT BTG WO u8.5¢ %
T[T BE 09508 hFe Bt Teome wEre
T TACE | 986 oW fea Fea oifewia Tow, I
e Prstoa sifEwr fares At rate SeAme e
A @Efes wrfwTer 9 gEE  AEEE s
faras 2w Termrea A e 77 |

5 A6 T2 41fEF TeAWT NChT Bd O 47 2

to the mark in respect of capacity of machinery
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It appears from the above that production of
cement has been gradually increasing in the
years 2015-16,2016-17,2017-18 & 2018-19
but in 2019 - 20 the production was slightly
decreased due to lockdown declared by Gov-
ernment for COVID -19 pandemic.

Sales

During the period under review sales comes
to 327,164 MT of cement as against 336,360
MT in the year 2018-19. Accordingly, net
turnover in 2019-20 stands at Tk. 1932.67
million against Tk. 1,862.34 million in
2018-19.

2019-20 2018-19

Export
SaIEI:?MTJ Export
Sales (MT)

9.52%

12.35%

= Local Sales (MT)
Exportsales (MT)

Y
‘

Local Sales

H Local Sales (AT}
@ ExportSales (MT)

Local Sales

(T (MT)
87.65% 90.48%

Sales activities were accomplished through
dealers and large number of non-dealers
throughout the country during the year under
review. Moreover, the Company exported
40,418 metric tons of cement to India and
KEPZ during year 2019-20 against 32,040
metric tons in the year 2018-19. The
Company has arranged dealer conference
every year at India and KEPZ to explore the
market and the export in the year 2020 -21 is
expected to rise due to wide change in the
sales policy.

1112 I 6 B e 1 e B 7l e B
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
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The Board of Directors in every quarter
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Risk factors and concerns
The Board has established a risk and control
structure designed to manage the
achievement of business objectives. A
summary of the most significant risks is
included in ANNEXURE-III
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~ Credit Rating Information and Service (CRISL)

(&Es bR
Ao grd s Afreem W FEwEeE e srer
(@FFAIE - @52 “ BBB+ " SR 20T |

~ assigned rating as below:

— Stable

.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

The Company contributed an amount of Tk.-
460,815,942.00 to the National Exchequer in the
form of Customs Duty, Value Added Tax (VAT)
and Advance Income Tax during the period
from 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 under review.
Contributions to the national exchequer made
under various heads during the last five years
have been mentioned below:

— Stable

—

GO (RIS

WPEAAT (EAET WAL A%d WMl g, e
SREAGE o9 @A WFST 40O (WG 80 ,bd¢ ,58.00
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Contribution to National Exchequer
500,000,000
450,000,000
400,000,000
i 350,000,000
= 300,000,000
= 250,000,000
3 200,000,000
5 150,000,000
100,000,000
50,000,000
WA e, _2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 ~2015-16
m Value Added Tax 255,658,471 273,582,307 | 249,585,812 | 202,633,794 | 215,010,127
M Duties at Import Stage 144,743,365(151,753,045|161,147,926 | 105,305,705 (104,127,357
= '
Advance Income Tax- Adjustable o, 11, 106 | 69,616,727 | 72,100,348 | 51,416,910 | 48,218,762
/Refundable
™ Total — 460,815,942 494,952,079 | 482,834,086 | 359,356,409 | 367,356,246
Environmentgﬁ! Aspect AR

Honest efforts?%g‘are being made to keep the
surrounding environment pollution free and
accordingly facbgry premises are always kept
clean and hygienic. Disposal of waste are
supervised carefuﬂsg and plantation of trees are
carried out in and around the factory premises
regularly.
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Rotation of Directors

As per clause 100(a) and 100(c) of the Articles of
Association of the Company, one third of the
Directors retire by rotation in every Annual
General Meeting. In the 24th Annual General
Meeting, Directors namely Ms. Shukla Das and
Mr. Khourshedul Alam will retire and eligible for
re-election.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Chief Executive Officer is paid remuneration
as approved by the Board of Directors and
subsequently by the Shareholders in Annual
General Meeting (AGM). Other than this, all
directors including Independent Directors are
paid attendance fee for each meeting of Board
of Directors actually attended by them.

Appointment of Auditors

The existing auditors of the Company M/S Safiq
Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants will retire at
this meeting. They have submitted a written
request for re-appointment as auditors of the
Company for the year 2020-21 as per provision
of Section 210(1) of the Companies Act, 1994.
They are eligible for re-appointment as auditor
for 2020-21. If any other proposal of Chartered
Accountants firms is received within the
stipulated time will be placed in the 24th
Annual General Meeting. The honorable
shareholders will decide for appointment of
auditor for the year 2020-21.

Dividend

During the year under report, the Board of
Directors has not recommended any dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2020. Due to loss
incurred in the period under report and there is
no any fund in the company to distribute
among the shareholders.

Discussion on  continuity of any
Extra-Ordinary gain or loss

There was no extra-ordinary gain or loss during
the year 2019-2020.

Related Party Transaction
Basis of the related party transactions with the
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company has been elaborated in the audited
financial statements under in note no. 35 in
accordance  with relevant International
Accounting Standards (IAS).

Utilization of IPO proceeds and financial
results after IPO

Company had no unutilized IPO fund after
going IPO.

Significant variance between quarterly and
annual financial performance

There was no significant difference between
quarterly performance and overall annual
performance. Throughout the year Company
was able to maintain a judicious performance
both in operational and financial perspective.

Outlook and possible future development
The present cement consumption in the
country is not up to the mark due to impact of
COVID-19. The trend of business has starting
showing  gradual  improvement  after
undertaking various development works both
at Government & Private Sectors. We are also
hopeful of profitin current year since the rate of
bank interest is reduced to 9% as per
proclamation of Bangladesh Bank with the
effect after 1** April. Previously the rate was
extremely high which forced the company to
sustain losses.

The strong network of Sales and Marketing
activities and newly introduced loading facility
with erection of two new additional silos
facilities more delivery of cement to our
esteemed customers in time and more revenue
can easily be generated if more sales are made
by the sales team.

Our mission and vision is to develop a strong
growth momentum in coming year with a
target of occupying a fair share in the cement
market both at home and abroad. We shall also
be more focus on customer care through
innovation product and services as well as
through optimization of its sales with low profit
margin maintaining the standard quality.
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Corporate Governance

In recent times, the issue of Corporate
Governance practice has assumed paramount
importance as it paves the way for efficient
management of a company through making it
accountable and transparent to the
shareholders and then nation as well. In view of
this, the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission has issued a number of guidelines
that are required to be disclosed to the
shareholders and accordingly the status report
of such conditions have been summarized in
the “Annexure -C" as per the
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80
dated 03 June 2018.

Welfare activities extended to employees

1. Picnic: The management, officers, staff and
workers of the Company are enjoying picnic
once in every year. Annual cultural program is
held at the picnic spot.

2. Haj program: One person from the
permanent employees of the group is sent to
perform Holly Haj once in every year by
selection through lottery at the cost of the
Company.

Training

Officers, workers and employees of different
categories were given scope for participating in
various training courses, workshops and
seminars to improve their efficiency and
productivity during the year under review.
In-house training programs are also arranged
regularly.

Corporate Social Responsibility

1. Blood donation : The management
organizes blood donation campaign jointly
with “Sandhani” once in a year. The managers,
officers, staff and workers of the Company
donate blood to the “Sandhani” in factory
premises.

2. Relief distribution : As the part of Corporate
Social Responsibility, the Company distributed
blankets and warm clothes in winter season to
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the distressed people. In rainy season relief is
also distributed to the flood affected people of
various areas of the country.

Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events between the
balance sheet date and the date of this report
which could have significant impact on the
financial results of the Company.

Directors’ responsibilities statement
Pursuant to the Commission’s Notification
No:-BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80
dated 03 June 2018 the Directors confirm that:

a) The financial statements prepared by the
management of Aramit Cement Limited fairly
presents its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of account of the Company
have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the
financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

d) International Accounting Standards (IAS) /
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) /
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been
followed in preparation of the financial
statements and any departure there-from has
been adequately disclosed.

e) The system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

f) There are no doubts upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern and the
annual accounts have been prepared on going
concern basis.

g) The significant deviations from last year in
the operating results of the Company have
been highlighted in the report and reasons
thereof have been explained.
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h) The number of Board Meetings held during AR ST A R e Fese! HEE |
the year and attendance by each director is

~ disclosed in “Annuxure-I1". g dfe Sefawsna EmE Wit Gy 9 9Ed
i) The pattern of shareholding is disclosed in ], A @3 SfFFeiEs ARBER 4w AT
“Annexure-1V". T BT |

j) A compliance status report with requirements
of corporate governance as required by qgrSle  ARSERT AT S o, (Fel @
Commission is disclosed in Corporate SRS VTR Y T ARSEE w0
Governance Report and it's Annexure-C. _ >
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Conclusion FHR
In conclusion, the Board of Directors would like
to express their gratitude for valuable AT & %
assistance and support extended to the
Company by the various Government and -M\ﬂ o
NorT~Gc.:vernnTent Agencies such as F1panaa| (P1. . ST )
Institutions like Investment Corporation of
Bangladesh, Bangladesh Development Bank dubiig
’ = BBET, b WMEET 2030
Ltd., Karnaphuli Insurance Company Limited,
Janata Insurance Company Limited, Sonar
Bangla insurance company, Aramit Limited,
other related organizations, Government
Authority, Auditors, Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock Exchange
Ltd., Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd., Central
Depository Bangladesh Limited. The Board also
expresses their heartiest gratitude to Utility
provider and all the valued Shareholders of the
Company for their investment in the Company.

The Board of Directors would also like to express
their special thanks to all grades of employees
of the Company for their dedicated service.

We place on record our appreciation to the
dealers, customers and suppliers for their
contribution to the progress of the Company.
Allah Hafez.

On behalf of the Board

NS AN 3
S.M. Alamgir Chowdhury,
Chairman

Chattogram
28 October 2020.
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ANNEXURE - |
Management Discussion and analysis:

Management discussion and analysis are stated below in detail to provide the readers with an overview
of the operational results.

Accounting Policies and estimation

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
International Accounting Standards (IAS) / Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) / International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of
the financial statements and any departure there-from has been adequately disclosed. There is no
change in accounting policies and estimation during the period.

Financial Performance
Financial performance of the Company during the year 2019 - 2020 along with previous years is briefly
summarized below:

011012019 011Ul 2018 011Ul 2017 011Ul 2016 01 Jan 2015
to to to to to
Particulars 30 June 2020 30 June 2018 30 June 2018 || 30 June 2017 30 Jun 2016
| 12 Months 12 Months || 12Months || 12 Months || 18 Months
| Taka Taka |1 Taka 1 Taka I Taka

Revenue 1,932,088,686 1,862,346,781 1,723,283,629 1,558,264,409 1,573,923,703
Cost of Goods Sold 1,530,764,.459 1,520,997,183 1,450,679,745 1,242,105,134] 1,180,634,430
Gross Profit 401,324,227 341,349,598 272,603,884 316,159,274 393,319,273
Trading Profit 231,514,163 199,957,034 151,006,410 170.682,200 279,463,624
Profit/{Loss) before income tax (128,705,997) (144,664,201) (132,275,333) (66,086,945) 38,262,112
Provision for income tax 103,597,904 29,920,457 22,338,835 34,578,342 9,916,804
Profit/(Loss) after income tax (232,303,901) (174,584,658) (154,614,172) (100,665,287) 28,345,308
Revaluation surplus of property, 1,257,921,423 x ~ _ l
plant,and Equipment

Deffered tax on revaluation (187,610,809) ) ) ) J
surplus of asselts

Total Comprehensive income 838,006,712 - - - -
Proposed dividend - - - - 40,656,000

It can be observed that in the year 2019-20 net loss before income tax stood at Tk.-128,705,997 against
net loss before income tax at TK.-144,664,201 in the year 2018-19. Continuous increase in financial
expenses and failure to achieve the breakeven point is the main reasons behind increasing loss. Failed
to achieve sales target and advance income tax paid at import stage treated as Final Tax by government
played a vital role in increasing the loss after tax.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold means cost of products which was sold during the year. Cost of goods sold contains
all the costs directly related with finished goods for sale i.e. raw materials including all duties and taxes,
carrying, handling and other costs. Cost of goods sold differs with production and sales. In term of
percentage cost of goods sold in 2019-2020 has decreased by 2.47% as compared to 2018-19.

Gross profit to sales
Gross profit is the difference between sales and cost of goods sold. The gross profit margin is one
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indicator of the financial health of a business. Larger gross profits are better for business. During the
period gross profit to sales is 20.80 % which is increased by 2.47% against the year 2018-19.

Net profit to sales

Net profit is the difference between gross profit and operating expenses including tax and WPPF. It’s
showing what the business has earned or sustained loss during the period. During the period net profit
to sales is negative i.e. (12.02) %.

Risk and concerns issues related to financial Statements:

As ACL is dependent on import for clinker and few other key raw materials, it is exposed to volatility of
exchange rate of Taka against Dollar. Recently, the exchange rate of US Dollar is relatively volatile and
therefore the concern needs to pay comparatively higher price for import which may affect ACL's
profitability.

Management Representation inresponse to Auditors Opinion:

01- As disclosed in note 5.02 and 5.03 to the financial statements, Investment in Associates
amounting Tk. 34532500 have been valued at cost price but it should be valued applying Equity
method as required by IAS 28.

Representation: Shareholding position for investing associate companies will be regularized in
next financial year, i.e. 2020 - 21.

02- To the note # 2.11 to the financial statements, which describes the maintenance of credit loss
regarding trade receivable.

Representation : In the 124t Meeting of the Board of Directors of Aramit Cement Limited held
on Wednesday, 28" October, 2020 the Board has approved the Management’s proposal of
creating provision for Bed Debt @ 2% on the receivable amount which was blocked for three years
or more from Accounting Year 2020-2021.

Future Plan or forecast for company’s performance:

The demand for cement both at Government level projectsand private owned development works was
high during pre-Pandemic period but the Covid-19 situation still prevailing in the country has a
significant negative impact on the cement consumption because of reluctance by the users to go for
any development works. Whatever the orders for cement received from present market is a bit low from
our expectation but we are doing aggressive marketing now for procuring more orders for delivery of
cements to the customers.

With the erection of two additional silos in current year will push up the quick delivery of cement which
will lead to generate more revenues in future. Moreover we are also hopeful of making profit in current
year because of lowering bank interest at 9% from 1st April by all scheduled Banks.

The company’s Marketing and sales team has been re-arranged for aggressive marketing and executing
various contracts with different projects undertaking various development works like MES, BRAC, KEPZ,
CHINA HARBOUR and also searching more new projects in order to enhance sales volume. If all
operational and marketing activities are carried out in order in current period will definitely fetch a
massive amount of revenue for the company and Insa- Allah we shall see the greenery field especially in
the revenue side.

(ol e

Rukhmila Zaman
Chief Executive Officer.



ANNEXURE-II
Number of Board, Audit Committee Meeting and NRC meeting for the year 2019 - 2020

Nomination and

Board Meeting | Audit Committee z Attendance
Remuneration
Name Position Meeting Commitee Meeting Fee
No.of | No.of | No.of | No.of | No.of | No.of |

Meeting | Meeting | Meeting | Meeting | Meeting | Meeting

held |attended| held [attended| held |attended
Mr. S. M. Jamal Ahmed Chairman 6 5 - - - - 50,000.00
Ms. Rukhmila Zaman Managing Director 6 6 - - 60,000.00
Mr. Md. Amarat Hossain Director 6 6 - - 2 1 60,000.00
Ms. Shukla Das Director 6 3 4 3 - - 60,000.00
Mr. Khourshedul Alam Director 6 1 - - - - 10,000.00
Mr. 5.M. Alamgir Chowdhury Independent Director 6 6 £ 4 2 2 100,000.00
Mr. Warasuzzaman Chowdhury | Independent Director 6 4 4 2 2 2 60,000.00

ANNEXURE-III

Risk factors and concerns

Interest Rate Risk : The Company has significant bank fund dependency for working capital manage-
ment and pays a significant amount of bank interest and charges. The Bangladesh Bank already made a
recommendation for reduction of interest rates to the scheduled banks but the scheduled banks did not
curtail the rates as recommended by the central bank which is affecting the financial performance of
the company badly.

Operational Risk : The project of the company is situated at a high land where less amount of flood is
recorded. The factory building has well-built foundation to withstand fire, wind, storm, rain etc. along
with good drainage facility. ACL gets required power from its sister concern namely Aramit Power Limit-
ed which generates 4.08 MW electricity. However, gas supplied by Karnafully Gas Distribution Company
Ltd. is not adequate for current requirement for that reason one 33 KV sub- station from PDB already
set-up in the factory premises. On the contrary, ACL has already developed its human resource base for
in-house servicing of plant and machinery. It also does not possess any major technological risk in near
future and there’s a little possibility of invention of new and more cost effective technology in the long
run which may cause functional obsolescence of existing plant.

Raw Material Supply Risk : Clinker, slag, Limestone and gypsum are the main raw material for produc-
ing cement. The company does not have any raw material supply agreement with any supplier; however
that has not been a problem since commencement of production due to long standing good relation-
ship with the suppliers. In general, the company maintains adequate stock of raw materials (mainly
clinker) to ensure smooth production. So far, the company faced no noticeable crisis in arranging the
supply need.

Market Risk : There are some multinational giants who produce a huge quantity of cement and their
marketing policy is stronger than local companies. Aramit Cement Limited has taken initiative to
increase the production capacity. However, the cement industry is dependent on growth of develop-
ment and construction of the whole economy. Market demand in Bangladesh is estimated to be 25-30
million MT/ annum. Existing producers are almost capable to meet this demand. Under the above back-
drop, Aramit Cement Limited needs firm concentration on ensuring quality in addition to extensive
advertising and promotional effort to ensure profitable sustainability in the market.
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Compliance Risk : Cement manufacturing has an impact on the surrounding environment. Cement
manufacturing consumes large quantities of non-renewable raw materials (minerals and fossil fuels). It
is also an important source of CO2 emissions. It deserves mention here that the company has installed
Air Pollution Controller (APC) in order to comply with environmental code. Mixing Ratio of two types of

Cement manufactured by the company is as follows:

Portland Portland
Co?np::ite Col:np::Ite Drélelna rvtplnargz; d
Cement / B-M Cement / A-M il
65~ 79% 80~ 94% 95 ~100%
Lime Stone & < " :
Slag 21~ 35% 06 ~ 20% Nil
0~5% 0~5% 0~5%

Quality Control Risk : Quality indicators of cement produced by the company have been found to be
consistent with the standard requirements of both BDS EN (European) and ASTM (American) standards.
BUET macde tests of some quality parameters for Aramit Cement (say for example, compressive strength
at 03 days, 07 days & 28 days) that revealed an outstanding value compared to the standard. Details of
recent BUET test results (PSI) weigh against standard are outlined below:

Compressive strength
3days 7 days 28 days

PSI PSI PSI

Portland Composite Cement (PCC), CEM II /B-M,42.5N 3680 4750 5760

Portland Composite Cement (PCC), CEM I1 /A-M,42.5N | 3855 | 4830 | 6084

Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC),CEM 1,52.5N 4049 5135 6512
"i

From the above comparison, it can be concluded that the company’s product complied all requisites
regarding excellence.

The management of the Company is trying its level best to overcome the above risk factors as far as
practicable for achieving better results in future.



ANNEXURE-IV
Pattern of Share Holding as on 30 June 2020

Number of Percentage

Shares held by

Shares held

of holding

Remarks

Others -
37.92%

19.29%

Bangladesh
Development Bank

Ltd
6.43%
Investment

Corporation of

Institutions - !
14.94% Rukhmila Zaman
14.97%

A

Bangladesh
‘/ 6.45% §
Chief Executive =
Officer and his__f
spouse and minor
children : Ms,

i

|

LRRLLLER S S L

Represented by -
Aramit Limited 6,534,000 19.29% Ms. Rukhmila Zaman i |
Mr. Khourshedul Alam '
Repsenented by-
Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd 2,178,000 6.43%
Mr. Abdul Kuddus
: Represented by -
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 2,186,033 6.45% Ms. Shulda Dol
Chief Executive Officer and his spouse
and minor children : Ms. Rukhmila 072,320 TN
Company Secretary and his spouse
P v P = 0.00%
and minor children.
Chief Financial Officer and his spouse
- 0.00%
and minor children.
Head of Internal Audit and his spouse
) - 0.00%
and minor children.
Executive (Top five salaried person
other than CEO,CS,CFO,HIA):
1. Kamal Miah. (GM, Operation)
2. Mr, Syedul Anam Chowdhury,
(GM, Sales & Marketing)
3. Mr. Syful Islam . 0.00%
(AGM,, Sales & Marketing,Corporate)
4. Abdul Haque, (AGM, Transport)
5. Mr. Saiful Alam,
(Manager Sales & Marketing)
Shareholders holding ten percent
(10%) or more voting interest in the
General Public:
Institutions - 5,061,470 14.94%
Others - 12,848,177 37.92%
17,909,647 52.86% |
33,880,000 |  100.00% ]
SHARE HOLDING POSITION J
Aramit Limited 1

-
:
-
:
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- CORPORATE
- GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance is to have a mechanism in place for the Board of Directors and other key
management staff to safeguard the shareholders interest and other stakeholders of the Company.
Transparency in business transaction and disclosure of information to regulatory bodies as part of
its legal obligations constitute sound corporate governance. Good corporate governance also
means conformity to sound ethical principles and a code of conduct in business dealings.

Board of Director

Board of Directors is the representative and trustee of the shareholders of the Company. The
Board of Directors of Aramit Cement Limited comprises of six members including Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and the Board also has two Independent Director in compliance with the corpo-
rate Governance Guidelines of BSEC. Board of Directors is performing the responsibilities, among
others, setting the Company'’s strategic objectives, providing leadership, supervision and ensuring
shareholders’ interest.

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

Board of Directors is reporting the performance, annual achievements and status of the Company's
activities to the shareholders. They are also conveying the future plan and outlook of the industry
and Company in their report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are two separate individuals selected by the Board of Direc-
tors of Aramit Cement Limited. Both are performing defined responsibilities and focusing on the
strategic value addition of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit

Company has appointed two qualified Cost Accountants designated as Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary regularly advise and assist
the Board on financial strategy and compliance issues of the regulatory bodies. Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary is also attending Board Meeting as per Corporate Governance
notification of the BSEC. Company’s internal audit department is also headed by a head of Internal
Audit having professional expertise and experiences in the field of internal audit.

Board of Directors clearly defined respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.

Audit Committee

Aramit Cement Limited has an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. This
committee is assisting the Board of Directors in ensuring that the financial statements reflect true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within
the business. This committee is responsible to the Board of Directors and its duties and responsibil-
ities are clearly set forth in writing. Audit Committee is reconstituted as per the guidelines of BSEC.
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Audit Committee holds regular meetings on the following major issues:
. To review the financial statements and reporting process and monitor the choice of
accounting policies and principles

N
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- To review the business risk management

= To review the internal audit assessment

® To oversight the good corporate practices

° To review the adequacy of internal audit function etc.
A separate report of the audit committee is included.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Aramit Cement Limited has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee as a sub-committee of the
Board of Directors. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) was constituted in 112th
BOD Meeting of the company held on 15th September 2018.

Internal Audit and Control
Aramit Cement Limited established an Internal Audit Department consisting of professional and
knowledgeable employees. Internal Audit Department directly reports to the Board of Directors.

Internal Audit department regularly conducts their audit based on a yearly Internal Audit Plan and
checks, verifies and reviews the compliance of Internal Control Procedure and other regulatory
requirements.

External Auditors

External Auditors of Aramit Cement Limited is appointed in every Annual General Meeting (AGM)
by the Shareholders of the Company as per Companies Act, 1994. Company also conforms to the
requirement of Bangladesh Securities and Exchanges Commission in appointing external auditors.

External Auditors are not engaged to perform any of the tasks other than external/ statutory audit.

Maintaining a website

Aramit cement Limited maintaining an official website linked with the website of BSEC and the
stock exchange keeping availability of the detailed disclosures on its website as per required
notification of BSEC and listing regulations of the concerned stock exchanges.

Certification on the Compliance of Corporate Governance Guidelines of BSEC

A certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Guidelines of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission is included in the annual report.

REPORT ON GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE
Certificate of BAPLC
As per condition no. 46, of listing regulartion of Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) &
Chittagong Stock Exchange(CSE) we hereby present the certificate of Membership
given by Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies (BAPLC) for the year 2019-20:

R N N N S TRy

BANGLADESH ASSOCIATION OF PUBLICLY LISTED COMPANIES [5
——

T s

Renewed Certificate
This is to certify that

ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITELY
i e Oy Member of Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies

dnd i eedptbed o gl the rghes and precrleges apperiatntg thereto

Thes certafreate remaing carrent until 31" December 2020,

O Al
\ < Secretary-Ganeral
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No.1 (5) (xxvi)

DECLA RATION BY CEO AND CFO
Date: 28 October 2020

The Board of Directors

Aramit Cement Limited

53, Kalurghat Heavy/Industrial Estate.
Chattogram.

Subject: - Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1 (5) (xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No BSEC/CMR-
RCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 03 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordi-
nance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Aramit Cement Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2020 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any department there from has been
adequately disclosed ;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent reasonable
basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view ;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and
fairly presented inits financial statements ;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal
control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the estab-
lished policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The Management ‘s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainly related to events or conditions that may cast signif-
icant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief :

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading ;

(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(i) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the

E Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of

— Conduct for the company's Board of Directors or its members.
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= Sincerely Yours,

=

s e
Rukhmila Zaman Muhammed Shah Alam, FCMA
Managing Director(MD) Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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(Issued under condition No.-1(5)(xxvi)of Corporate Guidelines of BSEC vide Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June-2018)

47 MRH DEY & CO.

MrN chartered Accountants

Sawor T

Report to the Shareholders of Aramit Cement Limited on
compliance of the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status oft he Corporate Governance Code by Aramit
Cement Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2020, This Code relates to the Notification Mo
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 3, 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company.
Qur examination was limiled to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corparate Governance Code.
This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of
the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in
so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance
Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required,
and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Govemance Code as
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Commission.

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB) as required by this Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Acl, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws,; and

d) The Governance of the company appeared lo be satisfactory.

Place: Chattogram

Dated : November 29, 2020

Dhaka Office : 95, Kazi Nazrul Istam Avenue (2nd Floor), Kawran Bazar, Dhaka, Bangladesh,
Phone ; D2-8143313, Fax : 02-8143313, Moblle : 01846-553636, 01716-396827, E-mail : mrhdeydk@gmail.com
Chattogram Office : Taheaer Chamber (1st Floor), 10, Agrabad, Chattogram-4100, Bangladesh.
Phone : 031-T21342, 725549, 717229, 721551, Fax : 031-2517906, E-mail | mrhdeyetg@gmail.com

Wab : www.mrhdey.com, Skype Id : mrhdey3
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Annexure - C

Report of the status of compliance of corporate governance as on 30 June 2020

Status of compliance with conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No SEC/CMRRCD /2006-
158/207 /Admin/80dated 03 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange
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Ordinance, 1969:
Compliance Status Remarks
Condition Title (if any)
No Not
Complied | Complied
1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1.1 Board Size v
1.2 Independent Directors
1.2(a) Number of Independent Director N There are 2
independent
Directors among 6
Directors in the
Board
1.2(b)(1) Shareholding by Independent Director N
1.2(b)(ii) Family Relationship with Independent Director N The Independent
Directors have
declared their
compliances.
1.2(b)(iii) Not Been an executive of the company vV -do-
immediately 02 financial years.
1.2(b)(iv) | Other relationship with Independent Director N -do-
1.2(b)(v) Membership of Independent Director with Stock N -do-
Exchanges
1.2(b)(vi) | Shareholding, Directorship or employment of v -do-
Independent Director with any Stock Exchanges
or Capital Market Intermediaries
1.2(b)(vil) | Association of Independent Director with audit Vv -do-
firm (currently or preceding 3 years)
1.2(b)(viii) | Independent Director holding same position in N -do-
more than 5 listed companies
1.2(b)(ix) | Bankruptcy of Independent Director vV -do-
1.2(b)(x) Criminal Offence involving moral turpitude of N -do-
Independent Direct
1.2(c) Appointment and Approval of Independent v -do-
Director by BOD in the AGM
1.2(d) Vacancy of post of Independent Director for not \ -do-
more than 90 days
1.2(e) The tenure of office of an Independent Director vV In 1165 BOD Meeting
shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which held on 28" April 2019
may be extended for (one) term only they have been
appointed for a 03
years term which was
approved by the
Shareholders in the
2314 AGM.
1.3 Qualification of Independent Director
1.3(a) Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable vV
individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance wit financial, regulatory and
corporate laws and can make meaningful
contribution to business




1.3(b)

Academic Background and Experiences of
Independent Director

L3D)@)

Business Leader who is /was a director of any
unlisted/listed company

1.3(b)(ii)

Corporate leader not less than MD, CEO, DMD,
COO, CFO,CS &HIAC

Not Applicable

1.3(b) (i)

Former Official of government or statutory or
regulatory body in the position not below 5t
Grade of the national pay scale.

Not Applicable

1.3(b)(iv)

University Teacher who has educational
background in Economics or commerce or
business Studies or law

Not Applicable

1.3(b)(v)

Professional such as Advocate (practice at least
in the high court division of Bangladesh
Supreme court, /Chartered Accountant,/Cost
and Management Accountant/Chartered
Financial Analyst/Chartered Certitied
Accountant/Certified Public Accountant/
Chartered Management Accountant/Chartered
Secretary or equivalent qualification.

Not Applicable

1.3(c)

Independent Director shall have at least 10(ten)
years experiences in any field above mentioned.

1.3(d)

Relaxed of experiences subject to prior approval
of the Commission.

Not Applicable

14

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of
Directors and Managing Director.

1.4(a)

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of the company shall be
filled by different individuals.

1.4(b)

The Managing Director and/or Chief Financial
Officer (CEO) shall not hold same position in
another listed company.

We  have

accorded the approval
from the Secretary,
Ministry of
Commerce, and Govt.
of the People’s
Republic of
Bangladesh for the
Managing Director of
Aramit Limited to act
as the Managing
Director of Aramit
Cement Limited also.

1.4(c)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected
from among the non-executive directors of the
company

L4(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles
and responsibilities of the Chairperson and the
Managing Director and/or Chief Executive
Officer.

1.4(e)

In the absence of Chairperson of the Board the
remaining members may elect one of themselves
from non-executive Directors as Chairperson for
that particular Boards Meeting; the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes.
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1.5

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

1.5(i)

Industry  outlook and  possible future
developments in the industry

1.5(ii)

Segment —wise or Pl‘OdLlC t-wise PEI'fOl‘]I'I.EIl‘lCE

1.5(iii)

Risks and concerns

L5(iv)

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit
Margin and Net Profit Margin

L) 2| £

1.5(v)

Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary
gain or loss

1.5(vi)

Basis for related party transactions- a statement
of all related party transactions should be
disclosed in the annual report

1.5(vii)

Utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights
issues and / or through any others instruments

Not Applicable

1.5(viii)

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate
after the company goes for Initial Public Offering
(IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights
Offer, Direct Listing, etc.

Not Applicable

1.5(ix)

If significant variance occurs between Quarterly
Financial performance and Annual Financial
Statements the management shall explain about
the variance on their Annual Report

1.5(x)

Remuneration to directors including
Independent Directors

1.5(xi)

The financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer company present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity

1.5(xii)

Proper books of account of the issuer company
have been maintained

1.5(xiii)

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the
financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment

1.5(xiv)

International Accounting Standards (IAS)/
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) /
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)/  Bangladesh  Financial = Reporting
Standards (BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh,
have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements and any departure there -
from has been adequately disclosed

1.5(xv)

The system of Internal Control is sound in design
and has been effectively implemented and
monitored

1.5(xvi)

Minority shareholders have been protected from
abusive action.

Not Applicable

1.5(xvii)

There are no significant doubts upon the issuer
company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If the issuer company is not considered to be a
going concern, the fact along with reasons
thereof should be disclosed




1.5(xviii)

.

Significant deviations from the last year ‘s
operating results of the issuer company shall be
highlighted and the reasons thereof should be
explained

1.5(xix)

Key operating and financial data of at least
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized.

1.5(xx)

If the issuer company has not declared dividend
(cash or stock) for the year, the reasons thereof
shall be given

1.5(xxi)

Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus
share or stock dividend has been or shall be
declared as interim dividend.

1.5(xxii)

The number of Board Meetings held during the
year and attendance by each director shall be
disclosed

1.5(xxiii)(a)

Share held by Parent/ Subsidiary/ Associated

Companies and other related parties (name wise
details)

1.5(xxiii)(b)

Share held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer,
Head Of Internal Auditor and their spouses and
minor children (name wise details)

1.5(xxiii)(c)

Share held by executives

1.5(xxiii)(d)

Share held by shareholders holding ten percent
(10%) or more voting interest in the company
(name wise details)

£ | £

1.5(xxiv)

Disclosure  for the  appointment or
reappointment of a director.

1.5(xxiv)(a)

A brief resume of director

1.5(xxiv)(b)

Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional

areas

1.5(xxiv)(c)

Names of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship and the Membership of
committees of the board.

<] 2|2 <2

1.5(xxv)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed
by CEO or MD

1.5(xxv)(a)

Accounting policies and estimation for
preparation of financial statements.

< 2]

1.5(xxv)(b)

Change in Accounting policies and estimation

1.5(xxv)(c)

Comparative analysis of financial performance
with immediate preceding five years explaining
reasons thereof;

< | <

1.5(xxv)(d)

Compare financial performance or result and
financial positions as well as cash flows with the
peer industry scenario.

1.5(xxv)(e)

Briefly explain the financial and economic
scenario of the country and the globe.

L5(xxv)(f)

Risks and concern issue related to financial
statements and explanation mitigation plan of
such risk.

1500v)(g)

Future plan or projection or forecast for
company’s operation, performance and financial
position.

1.5(xxvi)

Declaration of certification by the CEO and CFO
as per Annexure-A
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1.5(xxvii) | The report as well as certification regarding N
compliance of conditions of this Code shall be
disclosed Annexure-B and Annexure-C

16 Meeting of the Board of Directors vV
The company shall conduct its Board meeting
and record the minutes of the meetings as well as
keep required books and records in line with the
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so
far as those standards are not inconsistent with
any condition of this code.

17 Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, Other
Board members and CEO

1.7(a) The board shall lay down a code of conduct Y
based on the recommendation of Nomination
and remuneration Committee(NRC)

1.7(b) The code of conduct as determined by NRC shall N
be posted on the website of the company.

2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary
Company
2(a) Provisions related to the composition of the Not Applicable

Board of Directors of the holding company shall
be made applicable to the composition of the
Board of Directors of the subsidiary company.
2(b) At least one (1) independent directors on the Not Applicable
Board of Directors of the holding company shall
be a directors on the Board of Directors of the
subsidiary company.

2(c) The minutes of Board Meeting of the subsidiary Not Applicable
company shall be placed for review at the
following Board Meeting of the holding
company.

2(d) The minutes of respective Board Meeting of the Not Applicable
holding company shall state that they have
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company
also.

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company Not Applicable
shall also review the financial statements, in
particular the investments made by the
subsidiary company.

3 Managing Director(MD) or Chief Executive
Officer(CEO),Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal  Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and
Company Secretary (CS)

3. 1(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing Director(MD) N
or Chief Executive Officer(CEQ), Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), a Head of Internal Audit (Internal
Control and compliance) and a Company
Secretary (CS).
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3.1(b)

The positions of the Managing Director(MD) or
Chief Executive Officer(CEQ), Chief Financial
Otficer (CFQO), a Head of Internal Audit (Internal
Control and compliance) and a Company
Secretary (CS). Shall be filled by different
individuals;

3. 1(c)

The MD or CEO, CS,CFO and HIAC of a listed
company shall not hold any executive positions
in any other company at the same time.

3. 1(d)

The Board of Directors should clearly define
respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the
CFO, the Head of Internal Audit and the CS.

3.1(e)

The MD or CEQO, CS,CFO and HIAC shall not be
removed from their position without approval of
the board as well as immediate dissemination to
the Commission and Stock exchange(s)

32

The MD or CEO,CS, CFO and HIAC of the
companies shall attend the meetings of the Board
of Directors, provided that the CS,CFO and / or
HIAC shall not attend such part of a meeting of
the Board of Directors which involves
consideration of an agenda item relating to their
personal matters

3.3

Duties of Managing Directors (MD) or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFO),

3.3(a)(d)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the
Board that they have reviewed financial
statements for the vear and that to the best of
their knowledge and belief these statements do
not contain any materia]ly untrue statement or
omit any material fact or contain statement that
might be misleading,.

3.3(a)(ii)

The MD or CEC and CFO shall certify to the
Board that they have reviewed financial
statements for the year and that to the best of
their knowledge and belief these statements
together present a true and fair view of the
company’s affair and in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws;

3.3(b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the
Board that they there are to the best of
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered
into by the company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of
conduct.

3.3(c)

Certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report.

Board of Director’'s Committee

For ensuring good governance in the company
the board shall have at least following sub-
conmunittees:

4(1)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

42)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

5.1

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5‘:1,(a)

The company shall have a Audit Committee as a
sub-committee of the Board.

5.1.(b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of
Directors in ensuring that the financial
statements reflect true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good
monitoring system within the business

5.1.(c)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the
Board of Directors. The duties of the Audit
Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

5.2

Constitution of the Audit Committee

5.2.(a)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at
least 3 (three) members

5.2.(b)

The Board of Directors shall appoint members of
the Audit Committee who shall be non-
executive directors of the company excepting
Chairperson of the Board and shall include at
least 1 (one) independent director.

5.2.(c)

All members of the audit committee should be
“financially literate” and at least 1 (one) member
shall have accounting or related financial
management background and 10(ten) years
experience.

5.2.(d)

The Board of Directors shall appoint the new
committee member(s) to fill up the vacancy(ies)
immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from
the date of vacancy(ies) in the Committee to
ensure continuity of the performance of work of
the Audit Comunittee

The board of
Directors has
Appointed members
in due time.
Therefore no vacancy

Occurred.

5.2.(e)

The Company secretary shall act as the secretary
of the Comumittee

5.2.(f)

The quorum of the Audit Comumittee meeting
shall not constitute without at least 1 (one)
independent director

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5.‘3-(a)

The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one)
member of the Audit Committee to be
Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall
be an independent director

5.3.(b)

In absence of Chairperson of the Audit
Committee the remaining members may elect
one of themselves as Chairperson and the reason
of absence of regular Chairperson shall be
recorded in the minutes.

5.3.(c)

Chairperson of the audit committee shall remain
present in the Annual General Meeting (AGM)

H’

54

Meeting of the Audit Committee

54.a)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its
four meeting in a financial year

N




5.4.(b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit
Committee shall be Constitute in presence of
either two members or two third of the members
of the Audit Committee whichever is higher,
where presence of an independent director is a
must.

5.5

Role of Audit Committee

5.5'(3}

Oversee the financial reporting process

5.5(b)

Monitor choice of accounting policies and
principles

5.51

Monitor Internal Control Risk management
process

5.5(d)

Oversee hiring and performance of external
auditors

<] 4] Ll

5.5(e)

Hold meeting with external or statutory Auditor
for review of the annual Financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval or
adoption.

<

5.5(8)

Review along with the management, the annual
financial statements before submission to the
board for approval.

5.5(g)

Review along with the management, the
quarterly and half vearly financial statements
before submission to the board for approval

5.5(h)

Review the adequacy of internal audit function

5.5(1)

Review Management's discussion and Analysis
before disclosing in the Annual report.

550)

Review statement of significant related party
transactions submitted by the management

5.5(k)

Review Management Letters/ Letter of Internal
Control weakness issued by statutory auditors

5.5(1)

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on
scope and magnitude, level of expertise
deployed and time required for effective audit
and evaluate the performance of external
auditors;

<) <] L] L)L

5.5(m)

Disclosure by the company to the audit
committee on the utilization of fund raised
through IPO/RIPO quarterly/ annually

5.6

Reporting of the Audit Committee

5.6(a)

Reporting to the Board of Directors

5.6(a)(i)

The Audit Committee shall report on its
activities to the Board of Directors.

5.6(a)(ii)(a)

Report on contlicts of interests

No reportable conflict
of interest arose
during the year.

5.6(a)(ii)(b)

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or
material defect in the internal control system;

No such matters
arose during the year.

5.6(a)(ii)(c)

Suspected infringement of laws, including
securities related laws, rules & regulations;

5.6(a)(ii)(d)

Any other matter which the audit committee
deems necessary shall be disclosed to Board
immediately
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5.6(b) Reporting to the Authorities -do-
If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board
of Directors about anything which has material
impact on the financial condition and result of
operation and has discussed with the Board of
Directors and management that any rectification
is necessary and if the Audit Committee finds
that such rectification has been unreasonably
ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such
finding to the commission, upon reporting of
such matter to the Board of Directors for three
times or completion of a period of six (6) months
from the date of first reporting to the Board of
Directors, whichever is earlier.

5.7 Reporting to the Shareholders & General N The Audit Committee
Investors: Report is disclosed in
Report on activities carried out by the Audit the annual report
Committee, including any report made to the and signed by the
Board of Directors under condition 5(6)(a)(ii) Chairman of the
above during the year, shall be signed by said committee.

Chairman of Audit Committee and disclosed in
the annual report of the issuer company.

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC)
6.1 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
6.1(a) The company shall have a Nomination and N NRC was constituted
Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub- in112% BOD Meeting
committee of the Board. of the company held
on 15t September
2018.

6.1(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of N
the nomination criteria or policy for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, experience and
independence of directors and top level
executives.

6.2 Constitution of the NRC
6.2(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least 3 v
(three) members including an Independent
Directors.
6.2(b) All members of the Committee shall be non- N
executive directors.
6.2(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated N
and appointed by the Board.
6.2(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and vV
appoint any member of the committee.
6.2(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or
removal of any member of the Committee or in
any other cases of vacancies, the Board shall fill Not Applicable
the vacancy within 180 days of occurring such
vacancies in the committee.
6.2(f) The chairperson of the committee may appoint
or co-opt any external expert and/or members of
staffs to the comumittee as advisor who shall be
non-voting member.
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6.2(g)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary
of the committee.

6.2(h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not
constitute without attendance of at least an
independent Director

6.2(i)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either
directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any
advisory of consultancy role or otherwise, other
than director fees or honorarium from the
CD[['IPEII'IV‘

6.3

Chairperson of NRC

6.3(a)

The Board shall select 1(One) member of the
NRC to be Chairperson who shall be an
Independent Director.

6.3(b)

In the absence of Chairperson of the NRC the
remaining members may elect one of themselves
as chairperson for that particular meeting the
reason

Of absence of regular chairperson shall be
recorded in the minutes.

Not Applicable

6.3(c)

The chairperson of the NRC shall attend in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) to answer the
quires of the shareholders.

6.4

Meeting of the NRC

6.4(a)

The NRC shall conduct at least One meeting in a
financial year.

The first meeting of the
NRC was held on May 15, 2019

6.4(b)

The chairperson of the NRC may convene any
emergency meeting upon request by any
member of the NRC.

Not Applicable

6.4(c)

The Quorum of NRC shall be constituted in
presence of either two members or two third of
members whichever is higher the presence of
Independent Director is must.

6.4(d)

The proceeding of each meeting of the NRC shall
duly be recorded in the minutes shall be confirm
in the next meeting of the NRC.

6.5

Role of the NRC

6.5(a)

NRC shall be independent and responsible or
accountable to the board and to the shareholder

6.5(b)

NRC shall oversee, among others following
matters make report with recommendation to the
Board

6.5(b)(i)

Formulating in the criteria for determining
qualification positive attitude and independence
of directors and recommended a policy to the
Board relating to the remuneration of the
directors, top level executive.

6.5(b)(it)

Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking
into consideration age, gender, experience,
ethnicity, education background and nationality.

6.5(b)(iii)

Indentifying persons who are qualified to
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6.5(Db)(iii)

Indentitying persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be appointed in
top level executive position in accordance with
the criteria laid down, and recommended their
appointment and removal to the Board

0.5(b)(iv)

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of
performance of independent directors and the
Board

6.5(b)(v)

Identifying the company’s needs for employees
at different levels and determine their selection,
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;
and

6.5(b)(vi)

Developing, recommending and reviewing
annually the company’s human resources and
training policies

6.5(c)

The company shall disclose the nomination and
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria
and activities of NRC during the year at a glance
in its annual report

External/Statutory Auditors

7.10)

Non-engagement of appraisal or valuation
services or fairness opinions.

7.1(ii)

Non-engagement of financial information
systems design and implementation.

7. 1(iii)

Non-engagement of book-keeping of other
services related to the accounting records or
tinancial statements.

7.1(iv)

Non-engagement of broker - dealer services

7.1(v)

Non-engagement of actuarial services

7.1(vi)

Non-engagement of internal audit services

7. 1(vii)

Non-engagement of any other services that the
Audit Committee determines.

L] £ 212

7.1(viii)

Non-engagement of audit or certification service
on compliance of corporate governance

7.1(ix)

Non-engagement of any other services that
creates conflict of interest

7.2

No partner or employees of the external audit
tirms shall posses any share of the company they
audit at least the tenure of their audit assignment
of that company.

s

Representative of external or statutory auditors
shall remain present in the shareholders’
Meeting (AGM)to answer the queries of the
shareholders.

Maintaining a website by the Company

8.(1)

The Company shall have an official website
linked with the website of the stock exchange.

8.(2)

The Company shall keep the website functional
from the date of listing

8.(3)

The Company shall make available the detailed
disclosures on its website as required under the
listing regulations of the concerned stock
exchange.




Reporting &  Compliance of Corporate
Governance:

9(1)

The company shall obtain a certiticate from a
Professional Accountant/Secretary (Chartered
Accountants/Cost and Management
Accountant/Chartered Secretary) other than its
statutory auditors or audit firm regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Guidelines of Commission and shall
the same to the shareholders along with the
Annual Report on a yearly basis.

9(2)

The professional who will provide the certificate
on compliance of this Corporate Governance
Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in
the annual general meeting.

9(3)

The Directors of the company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure- C attached, in the
directors’ report whether the company has
complied with these conditions or not.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Aramit Cement Limited has an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. The
Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in ensuring that the financial statements reflect
true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring
system within the business. The committee is reporting to the Board of Directors on performing of
the clearly set forth responsibilities defined by the Board of Directors.

Committee Members

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three members including two Independent
Director knowledgeable about finance and organizational management. The Committee has been
reconstituted in line with Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's notification on
Corporate Governance as follows:-

Mr. Warasuzzaman Chowdhury - Independent Director & Chairman
Mr. S.M. Alamgir Chowdhury - Independent Director & Member
Ms. Shukla Das - Director & Member

Main activities of the audit committee are summarized below:

i Overseeing and monitoring of financial reporting process, adoption of reporting standards
and control risk management process, hiring and performance of external auditors

* Review of Periodic Financial Statements

* Review of Internal Control Assessment

Review of Internal Audit

Activities carried out during the period

In pursuance of its objectives, the Audit Committee of the Board held four meeting during the year

ended 30 June 2020 and the committee focused on the following activities:

i) To review the draft Financial Statements and recommended to the Board for consideration
after holding meeting.

i) To review significant internal audit findings with a view to taking timely corrective action.

iii) To review the Quarterly & Half Yearly Financial Statements of the company prepared to
evaluate the performance for onward submission to the shareholders as a statutory
requirement.

iv) Met with the members of the external Auditor and had discussion on the audit of financial
statements of the company.
V) Recommended the appointment of M/S Safiq Basak & Co. Chartered Accountants, as

external Auditors for the year 2019-20 of the company.

The audit committee is satisfied that the internal control and procedure in place for assessing and
managing risks are adequately designed and operated effectively to safeguard the assets of the
company. The committee is also satisfied the application of appropriate accounting policies
provides reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the company are true and fair.

On behalf of the Audit Committee, | would like to convey my gratitude to our valued shareholders
E for their continual support which leads us towards the way of success.
=
=
=
L]
=
(77) (Mr. Warasuzzaman Chowdhury)
E Chairman
= Audit Committee
28 October 2020.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE REPORT

In compliance with the Corporate Governance code 2018, the Board of Directors at its 112th meeting
held on 15th September 2018 constituted the Nomination and remuneration Committee (“NRC") to
assist the Board broadly in formulation of policy with regard to determining qualifications, positive
attributes, remuneration mainly for directors and top level executives. A brief of the NRC and its roles,
responsibilities and functions are appended below:

Composition and Meetings

The NRC of Aramit Cement Limited comprises of three (3) members who will exclusively be
non-Executive Directors, including two (2) independent Directors. The Committee includes: -

Mr. S.M. Alamgir Chowdhury - Independent Director & Chairman
Mr. Warasuzzaman Chowdhury - Independent Director & Member
Mr. Md. Abdul Kuddus - Director & Member

The Company Secretary Syed Kamruzzaman, FCMA acts as Secretary to this Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is prepared and adopted in compliance with Corporate
Governance Code 2018 of Bangladesh.

(i) Nomination and Appointment of Directors and Top Level Executives
The committee is responsible to ensure that the procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors and Top Level Executives are taking place in transparent, rigorous and
non-discriminatory ways. The committee is also responsible to identify and ascertain the
combination of age, gender, educational background, experience, knowledge, ethnicity,
diversity, nationality and other relevant personal values & attributes for nomination and
appointment of Directors and Top Level Executives.

(ii)  Remuneration of Directors and Top Level Executives
The committee shall oversee, review and make report with recommendations to the Board the
level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, motivate and
retain suitable, dependable and skilled Directors and Top Level Executives. In fixation of
remuneration, they also consider and review the performance bench marks. The remuneration
to Director and Top Level Executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

(i) Evolution Criteria for Directors
The evaluation of performance of the Independent Directors (IDs) and Non-Executive Directors
are carried out at least once a year or at such intervals of its work by the Board of Directors,
according to the following criteria:

(a)  Attendance at the Board meetings and Committee meetings

(b)  Participation in the Board meetings and Committee meetings

(c)  Contribution to improving the corporate governance practices of the company

(i) Evolution Criteria for Top Level Executives
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The respective line authority of top-level executives sets the performance measurement criteria
based on the respective roles and responsibilities to achieve business objectives through
Company appraisal processes at the beginning of each calendar year. The employees concerned
prepare the performance document. The respective line authority then evaluates the
performance of the employee(s) according to the measurement criteria.

ACTIVITY OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
During this reporting period, the Committee has conducted a meeting in June 10, 2020. The NRC of the
company carried out the following activities during the year 2019-2020:

(i) Reviewed and recommended the Code of Conduct for the Chairman, other Members of the
Board and Managing Director.

(i)  Reviewed the Company’s existing policy relating to the remuneration of Directors and Top Level
Executives.

(i)  Recommended the Board about the nomination and remuneration of Directors and Top Level
Executives.

(iv)  Discussed and decided regarding formulation of the criteria of evaluation of performance of the
Board and Independent Directors.

APPRECIATION
The NRC expresses their sincere thanks to the members of the Board and the management for their
support, guidance and co-operation while carried out the responsibilities.

‘TXY‘C\,Mdi\- y—
(Mr. 5.M. Alamgir Chowdhury)
Chairman

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
28 October 2020.
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Value Added Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Description

Sources of Funds

Net Tumover

Less: Brought in materials and services
Vahe added

Add: Other Income

Applied in the following ways
To Employees

Salary, wages. gratuity & other benefits
Contribution to Workers' profit participation & welfare finds

To Governments
Customs duty
Income Tax
Contribution to the national exchequer

To Provider of Capital
Dwvidends

Retained by the Company
To pay for capital expenditure to replace existing assets, to
expand working capital and for growth
Depreciation
Others
Retams eamings
Opening
Closing

Taka in Lac
01 July 2019 01 July 2018
to to
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
19.320.89 18.623.47
(16.939.40) (16,395.99)
2,381.49 2,227.48
10.63 38.59
2,392.12 2,266.07
1.428.92 1.460.39
1.428.92 1,460.39
1.447.43 1.517.53
1.035.98 299.20
2.483.41 1,816.74
3,912.33 3,277.13
802.83 734.79
(70.84) -
4.208.70 2.462.85
(6.460.90) (4.208.70)
(1,520.21) (1,011.06)
2,392.12 2,266.07
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aramit Cement Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise The Statement of Financial Position as at 30" June, 2020 and The Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and Notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the company as at 30" June, 2020 and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), theCompany Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws
and regulations.

Basis forQualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBAs) Codeof Ethics
for Professional Accountants, together with ethical requirement that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

i. As disclosed in note 5.02 and 5.03 to the financial statements, Investment in Associates
amounting Tk. 34,532,500 have been valued at cost price but it should be valued applying Equity
Method as required by IAS-28.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the note # 2.11 to the financial statements, which describes the maintenance
of credit loss regarding trade receivable. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor’s opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context

uoday jenuuy
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Key Audit Matters (KAM)

How our Audil Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Property, Plant & Equipment (Reval

ued)

The company had a large number of
Property, Plant & Equipment after
revaluation BDT 2.182.120.952 1is
recognized in The Statement of
Financial Position for the year ended
30 June 2020 by the company. This
material  item is  subject to
considerable inherent risk due to the
complexity of the system necessary
for proper recognition, measurement,
and recording considering the
application of “The International
Accounting Standard 16: Property,
Plant & Equipment”. Therefore. there
is a risk that:

Management has concluded that there
is no impairment in respect of all
assets, This conclusion required
significant management judgment.
Hence, we considered this to be key
audit matter.

In light of the fact that the high degree of complexity and estimates
and assumptions give rise to and increased risk of accounting
misstatements. we assessed the Company’s processes and controls
procedure for recognizing Property. Plant & Equipment as part of our
audit. Furthermore, in order to mitigate the inherent risk in this audit
area, our audit approach included testing of the controls and
substantive audit procedures, including:

e Checking the valuation method& report applied for reevaluating
Land (Free Hold & Lease Hold) and Building (Factory &
Laboratory) by an independent Valuer.

e Assessing the consistency of methodologies use for depreciating
the assets.

e Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the
accounting of Property, Plant & Equipment.

Furthermore, we assessed the accounting effects of assets valuation,
addition & depreciation. We assured ourselves of the appropriateness
of the systems. Processes. and Controls in place and that the estimates
and assumptions made by management are sufficiently documented
and substantiated to ensure that Property. Plant & Equipment is
properly recognized

See Note 03.00 to The Statement of Financial Position.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue of BDT 1.932,676.820 is
recognised in The Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income for the year ended 30 June
2020 by the company. This material
item is subject to comsiderable
inherent risk due to the complexity of
the system mnecessary for proper
recognition. measurement, and
recording considering the application
of the new standard on revenue
recognition, “The  International
Financial Reporting Standard 15:
Revenue from  Conrracts  with
Customers”. Therefore, there is a risk
of revenue being misstated as a result
of faulty estimations over discounts,
incentives, rebates and exchange
rates.

There is also a risk that revenue may
be overstated due to fraud through
manipulation of the invoices.
discounts, incentives and rebates
recognized resulting from the pressure
local management may feel to achieve
performance targets.

In light of the fact that the high degree of complexity and estimates
and assumptions give rise to and increased risk of accounting
misstatements, we assessed the Company’s processes and controls for
recognizing revenue as part of our audit. Furthermore. in order to
mitigate the inherent risk in this audit area. our audit approach
included testing of the controls and substantive audit procedures,
including:

* Assessing the environment of the measurement as well as other
relevant systems supporting the accounting of revenue.

e Assessing controls for systems and procedures supporting revenue
recognition.

® Assessing the invoicing and measurement system up to entries in
the general ledger.

¢ Examining customer invoices and receipts of payment on a test
basis in accordance with contract.

e Testing the revenue recognition in line with contract and reporting
standard.

Furthermore, we assessed the accounting effects of new business and
price models. We assured ourselves of the appropriateness of the
systems. Processes, and Controls in place and that the estimates and
assumptions made by management are sufficiently documented and
substantiated to ensure that revenue is properly recognized.

See Note 25.00 to The Statement of Financial Position.




Inventories

The company had inventories of BDT | We challenged the appropriateness of management’s assumptions
123,598.709as at 30™ June, 2020, held | applied in calculating the value of the inventory provisions by:
in factory house. work in process &

material in transit. This material item | Evaluating the design and implementation of key inventory

is subject to considerable inherent risk controls operating across TheCompanies Factory House. Work in
due to the complexity of the system process & Material in Transit;

necessary for proper recognition,

measurement. and recording | * Attending inventory counts and reconciling the count results to the
considering the application of “The inventory listings to test the completeness of data;

International Accounting Standards
2: Inventories". Therefore, there is a
riskthat

= Comparing the net realizable value. obtained through a detailed
review of sales subsequent to the year-end. to the cost price of a
sample of inventories and comparison to the associated provision
to assess whether inventory provisions are complete:

Inventories are valued by the |« Challenging the completeness of inventory provisions through

disclosed basis of Note-06. As a assessing actual and forecast sales of inventory lines to assess
result, the Directors apply judgement whether provisions for slow-moving/obsolete inventories are valid
in determining the appropriate values. and complete.

* Checking the cost of Raw materials purchase and valuation
method applied for raw materials and work in process.

Inventories can be over or

undervalued. Furthermore, we assessed& checking the accounting effects of

Inventories. We assured ourselves of the appropriateness of the
Inventories that actually belongs to | systems. Processes, and Controls in place and that the estimates and
third parties or sold to any party being assumptions made by management are sufficiently documented and
included in the financial statements. | substantiated to ensure that inventoriesare properly recognized.

See note 6.00to the financial statements

Other Matters

i Financial statements of the company for the year ended June 30, 2019 have been audited by
Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. (Chartered Accountants.) They havegiven qualified opinion for
that year on two qualification points. One of the qualification points has been solved by
management of the company during the year in its 118th Board of director Meeting and
23rdAnnual General Meeting.

i We were provided with a full set of working papers of the valuers (MRH Dey & Co.) required
as per BSEC Circular No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/ dated: August 18, 2013from
which we could ensure the methodology of the valuation. However, it seems from valuation
report and financial statements that the related accounting treatments havebeen properly
made in accordance with IAS 16 and IAS 12 regarding revaluation reserve and deferred tax.

Other Information included in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.Management is responsible
for the other information. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date
of issue of this auditor’s Report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained
prior to the date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, theCompany Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other
applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also :

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company'sinternal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of



accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Company Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also
report the following:
a) we have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;
b) inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company
so far as it appeared from our examination of those books;
c) the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of
account; and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company business. g
-
=
g ,!r Q : B
Place:Chattogram SHAFIQ BASAK & CO. 1]
November 09, 2020 Chartered Accountants g
Signed by : =
S KBasak FCA
Partner 49



ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

. 2020 2019
ek TAKA TAKA
ASSETS & PROPERTIES
NON CURRENT ASSETS & PROPERTIES
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 2182120952 891,048,706
Capttal Work In Progress 4 177.519.105 237848131
Investment 3 39.532.500 39.532.500
2,399.172.558 1,168,429 337
CURRENT ASSETS & PROPERTIES
Inventories 6 123,598,709 128.023.668
Trade Recemwables 7 2.389970.660 2107210444
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 8 787.105.593 667.896.348
Due From Associated Companies 9 601,454,565 635,816,555
Other Recemvables 10 2918955 2,898 955
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 84,659,705 77213628
3,989.708,187 3,619.059,600
TOTAL ASSETS & PROPERTIES 6i388i880i745 4178714881936
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY & LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital 12 338.800.000 338,800,000
Share Premmum 12.5 84,700,000 84,700,000
Reserves & Surplus 444797251 (394,869 .604)
General Reserve 13 26,000,000 26,000,000
Revalhation Reserve 1.064,886,774 -
Retamed Eamings (646,089.524) (420.869.604)
868,297,251 28,630,396
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Term Loan & Lease Fmance 14 341964329 397,653,136
Deferred Income Tax 15 258,893,060 54181359
Provision for Empbyees' Retiral Gratuiry‘ 16 37751722 30.139312
638,609,112 481,973,808
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current portion of Term Loan & Lease Fmance 17 210,346,143 195561129
Current portion of Redeemable Debentures 18 17.811.065 17.836.805
Creditors and Accruals 19 299.762.526 582.879.546
Provision For Income Tax 20 82,345,763 45965,125
Provision For WPP & WF 21 31,335 31,335
Short Term Loan 22 4226532,692 3.368.683,081
Due to Associated Companies 23 23878388 44 661.240
Unelamed Dividend 24 21.266471 21266471
4,881,974,382 4,276,884,732
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY & LIABILITIES 6,388.880,745 4,787,488,936
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (With Re valuation) 31 25.63 0.85

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

P e

DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
As per our annexed report of same date

COMPANY SECRETARY

( SHAFIQ EASAK &TO.)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Y 2020 2019
ot TAKA TAKA

Revenue 25 1.932.088.686 1.862.346.781
Cost of goods sold 26 (1.530.764459) _ (1.520.997.183)
Gross profit 401,324,227 341,349,598
Operating expenses

General and Admmistrative 27 (55.042.058) (51.423,548)

Selling and Distribution 28 (114,768.006) (89.969,016)

(169,810,064)  (141,392,564)

Trading profit 231,514,163 199,957,034
Financial expenses 29 (361.283.537) (348479,771)
Profit before other income (129,769,374) (148,522,737)
Other income - operating 30 1063377 3.858.536
Net profit be fore WPPF (128,705,997) (144,664,201)
Contribution @ 5% of operating profit to
Workers' Profit Participation & Welfare Funds 21 - -
Profit before income tax (128.705,997) (144.664,201)
Provision for income tax

Current 20 (84.836.869) (11,197.232)

Deferred 15 (18,761.035) (18.723,225)

(103,597.904) (29,920.,457)

Profit after income tax (232,303,901) (174,584,658)
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation surplus of preperty. plant and equipment 1,257,921.423 .
Deferred tax on revaluation surphis of assets (187.610.809) -
Toral comprehensive income for the period 838,006,712 (174,584.,658)
Earning per share 32 (6.86) (5.15)

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(o D

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Cc OM.PA NY SECRETARY DIRECTOR

As per our annexed report of same date.
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ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers and others
Cash paid to suppliers and others
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from Operating Activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property. plant and equipment

Addition to capital work in progress

Disposal of property. plant and equipment

Due from Associated Companies

Interest earned

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Due to Associated Companies

Short term loan

Long Term Loan & Lease Finance

Dividends paid

Interest paid on short term loan and bank charges
Interest on Debentures

Redeemable debentures

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from Financing Activities

Netincrease/ (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Adpstment for unrealised foreign currency fluctuation gain/(loss)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

OPERATING CASH FLOW PER SHARE (Note-33)

2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
1649308468 | 1.482.186.603
(2.057.967.534)|| (1.795.040,741)
(408,659,066) (312,854,138)
(117.556.193) (1.894.382)
60.329.026 (164.298220)
2.705.000 .
34,361,990 (204.451.296)
823.496 2.224.608
(19,336,681) (368,419,290)
(20.782.852) 44,661,240
857.849.611 1,252.260.211
(40903.792)||  (258.524.548)
- (15.859)
(361.283.537)||  (345.639.200)
- (2.840,571)
(25.740) -
434,853,689 689,901,273
6,857,944 8,627,847
588.134 1.690,056
71213.627 66.895.725
84,659,705 77,213,627
(12.06) (9.23)

(Ml D

MANAGING DIRECTOR

4

COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR
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ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1 THE COMPANY & IT'S OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated on 19 August 1995 as a Public Company limited by shares
under the Companies Act 1994 and has been allowed to commence business from the
foregoing date under Section 150(2) of the said Act. The principal activities of the Company
as stipulated to be, are manufacturing of '‘Portland’ cement and allied products and
marketing thereof. Shares and debentures of the Company were listed with Chittagong
Stock Exchange (CSE) on 9 September 1998 and with Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) on 16
September 1998. The commercial production of the factory commenced on 10 November
1999.

2 SUMMARIES OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information made in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, the Securities & Exchange
Rules 1987 and International Accounting Standard (IAS) and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB). The statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive
income have been prepared according to IAS 1: “Presentation of Financial Statement”
based on accrual basis of accounting following going concern assumption and statement of
cash flows according to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows".

2.2 Accounting convention and assumption
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention method.

2.3 Principal accounting policies

The specific accounting policies have been selected and applied by the Company's
management for significant transactions and events that have a material effect within the
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements. Financial
Statements have been prepared and presented in compliance with IAS-1: “Preparation of
Financial Statements”. The previous period’s figures were presented according to the same
accounting principles.

2.4 Application of Standards
The following IAS & IFRS are applied to the financial statements for the period under
review:

e
=
=
)
=
@
—
=
-

(9]
B



IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 2 Inventories
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period
IAS 12 Income Taxes

IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment
IFRS 16 Leases

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
IAS 33 Earnings Per Share
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

IFRS — 15 | Revenue from Contracts with Customers

2.5 Consistency

Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies and methods of computation used in
preparation of financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2020 are consistent with
those policies and methods adopted in preparing the financial statements for the period
ended 30 June 2019.

2.6 Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment are accounted for according to “IAS 16: Property, Plant and
Equipment” at historical cost less cumulative depreciation except freehold land and the
capital work-in-progress (when arises) is stated at cost. All assets are
depreciated/amortized according to the straight-line method over their expected useful
life. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and it is
recognized as non-operating income/(loss).

Valuation of Property Plant & Equipment

Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment is a technique that may be required to accurately
describe the true value of the capital goods a business own at a stipulated cut-off date. Free
Hold & Lease Hold Land and Factory & Laboratory Building is revalued by MRH Dey & Co
as per criteria of BSEC Circular No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-19.3/150/Admin/ Dated: 18
August 2013.

2.7 Depreciation of the Non-current assets

Depreciation is provided on straight-line method at the annual rate(s) shown below
whereby the cost less estimated salvage value of an asset is written off over its anticipated
service life except that long-term leasehold land which is amortized annually in such a
manner so that by the terminal period the lease value is fully amortized.
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Item of Property, Plant and Equipment Depreciation Rute recx?(;:::;n Rate
Building & other constructions on leasehold land 2.5% - 5%
Leasehold land 1.01%
Plant & machinery 5% - 10%
Electrical installation 7.5%-15%
Equipment, fittings & computer 15% - 20%
Transportation equipment 10% - 20%
Furniture & fixtures 10%

Depreciation is charged on the month (from date of capitalization) when the assets
are available for use and ceased from the (date of disposal / deletion) deletion month of the assets.

2.8 Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

2.9 Investment
This is being investment in unquoted equity shares valued at cost. Market value or intrinsic value of
shares was not considered consistently because of non-existence of active market therefor.

2.10 Valuation of Inventories
Inventories are valued as below in compliance with the requirements of 1AS 2: “Inventories”.

Category Basis of valuation

Raw & Packing Materials Weighted Average Cost

Work in process Average Cost of Materials and Appropriate Manufacturing
Expenses

Finished Goods At Cost or net realizable value whichever is lower

Goods-in-transit At Cost

Stores and spares Weighted Average Cost

2.11 Trade Receivables

Trade Receivable are amounts billed by company to its Customers (Dealer and Non-Dealer), When
it delivers goods to services to them in ordinary course of Business. In the General Ledger, Trade
Receivable are recorded in a separate Accounts Receivable account and are classified as Current
Asset on The Balance Sheet. Which is measured and disclosed under the IFRS-9. This is summarized
& classified in an Accounts Receivable aging report. As of balance sheet date all the receivable are
expected to be collectible.

However, the Companies at its 124th Board of Director Meeting, Management desires to create
expected lifetime credit loss in accordance with para 5.5 of IFRS 9 @ 2% on the Trade Receivable
amount which is blocked for three years or more than three years with effect from Accounting Year
2020-2021.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand and cash at banks, which are available for use by the company without any restriction,
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have been considered as the cash and cash equivalents for preparation of these financial
statements and there was insignificant risk of changes in value of these current assets.

2. 13 Creditors and Accruals

2.13.1 Trade and Other Payable

Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and services
received by the Company, whether or not billed by the suppliers.

2.13.2 Provision

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with International Accounting Standards
(IAS) 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets” which requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses,
assets and liabilities during and at the date of financial statements.

In accordance with the guidelines as prescribed by IAS 37 provisions were recognized in the
following situation:

. When the company has a present obligation as a result of past events;

. When it is probable that an out flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

B Reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The provisions are shown in the statement of financial position at an appropriate level with regard
to an adequate provision for risks and uncertainties. An amount recorded as a provision
represented the best estimate of the probable expenditure required to fulfill the current obligation
on the statement of financial position date.

Other provisions are valued at in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. Other provisions comprise all realizable risks from uncertain liabilities and
anticipated losses from pending transactions.

2.14 Employees Benefits

2.14.1 Employees’ retrial gratuity - note 16

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme and the provision in respect of which is made
at the rate of one month’s basic pay last drawn to cover the potential obligation in respect of all its
eligible employees.

2.14.2 Staff Provident fund

The company maintains a recognized provident fund with contribution @ 10% of basic pay (equally
contributed by the employee and employer) for all eligible permanent employees. The said fund is
managed by a board of trustees.

2.14.3 Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare fund

During the period the company has no profit, hence no provision recognizes for workers' profit
participation and welfare fund @ 5% of net profit before tax as per Bangladesh Labour code, 2006.

2.15 Taxation
2.15.1 The Company was allowed Tax holiday for a period of five years from the date of
commencement of commercial production i.e. 10 November 1999 vide National Board of
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Revenue's circular ref. 11(117) Anu:-1/2000 dated 18.09.2000. The period of tax holiday of the
Company expired in October 2004.

2.15.2 Provision for Current Taxation has been made as per 82C (Part-2) of Income Tax Ordinance
1984.

2.15.3 Provision for Deferred Taxation has been made at the ruling income tax rate applied on the
amount of temporary difference.

2.16 Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are current or possible obligations, arising from past events and whose
existence is due to the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, which
are not within the control of the company. In accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets are disclosed in note - 36 of the financial statements.

2.17 Foreign Currency Translation

2.17.1 The items in foreign currencies are translated & recorded in Taka currency at the rate of
exchange ruling on the relevant transaction date.

2.17.2 Monetary assets or liabilities in terms of foreign currency are translated into local currency
at the rate ruling on the date of statement of financial position.

2.18 Revenue Recognition

The company has applied IFRS 15 for recognition of revenue from this period

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This core principle is delivered
in a five-step model framework:

i) Identify the contract(s) with a customer

i) Identify the performance abligations in the contract

iii) Determine the transaction price

iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
V) Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company sells cement to its customers. Revenue is recognized when the entity satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring the goods to customers at an agreed transaction price.

2.19 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Statement of Cash
Flows"” and the cash flows from operating activities have been presented under indirect method as
required by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) Rule-1987.

2.20 Earning per share

The Company calculates Earning Per Share (EPS) in accordance with IAS 33 “Earning Per Share”
which has been shown on the face of Profit and Loss Account and the computation of EPS is stated
in note- 32 of the financial statements.

2.20.1 Basic earnings

The Company calculates earnings for the year attributable to the ordinary shareholders. As there is
no preference dividend, minority interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the
year has been considered as fully attributable to ordinary shareholders.
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2.20.2 Basic earnings per share
This has been calculated dividing the basic earnings by the total number of ordinary shares
outstanding at the year-end.

2.20.3 Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the period when scope for dilution exists.
No diluted earnings per share was required to be calculated during the period as there was no
convertible shares for which Basic Earnings Per Share would be diluted.

2.21 Certain Accounting Practices

The following expenditures are charged out to revenue as and when incurred

2.21.1 Cost of office supplies, publicity materials and services on procurement.

2.21.2 Charges on account of repairs and maintenance.

2.21.3 Applicable accrual in respect of creditors for supplies or services is considered only at the
time of year-end while closing the Company’s books of account.

2.22 Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the period from July 2018 to June 2019
for all numeric information in the Financial Statements and also the narrative and descriptive
information where it is relevant for understanding of the current periods Financial Statements.

2.23 Reporting Period
These financial statements cover one financial period from 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 for all
reported periods.

19}
~0

uoday jenuuy



POSBLEEL  LR6T8TOS "6107 13qui223( |€ o pazagendes snydms wogrenpeay :uonezjende) Jo aeq (1
LO0'6%9'61 § 2100 - uonqsi(] pue Sufjog Suppng {ojenge] 3§ Lojeg
9706 | 7809¢c°c L7 2100 - SARISUIWPE PUE |12 A0y yaeoadde ys0d yuawadeyd a1 pajeraand ap pue puey oy yoeardde anjes japey poyiay uoyeney (u
19LSLETL SSULLTLS 1'G 2100 - peain Alojey SIURIUNOY PAALIRY) “07) ¥ {3 HYIN -4anfeAJo dwey (1
1'g 9o - 3wy woyenddp o woyO[Y 7' Janjea uapuadapus U Aq 6107 AT 1€ 16 panfeAR) u2q aney sTuppng Lojesqu ] 3 U0RE puB puE PN

VAYL VIYL

6107 0zt
YLSEOIG8 | FSSTIIINTY | - - P6S'BLI'EL | 16T°E€9TSS £6S'091°LISTT | - % SPUORLTL | OSE'TIF'PHFL | ®YBLIBIOL 6107 dunf OE
TS6°0TI'T8I'T [ 91F'SKE98S | 769'9S9'801 | FSL'68E'TT [ LF6TST'08 | 88111979 89E69'89L'T | T€9'9S9'01 | 90TTIS'ST | SIOLLFSLET | 168°091°LIST | FNBLI®IOL  (Z07 dunf Of
®ruTl 9Tt i . S0 | L9190 %01 | 09 80E . 0886¢ 08E89FE AP % axpung
9LLBOEOLI LTI FLO8ETL | SHEEITLT | DTELIlol | *0TO01 | THENITLLE TTISEL | FEEE9T oS 09F T6¢ ueuidnby oeviodsues |
QLY UL . : PR0998T | STOWE0I | %0TSI | S68LLLI : & $L9189 o7 1601 Linduo) ¥ siumy ‘swandnb3
607026301 FOC9LI0F d J 119997 | S660H'SE %SICL | C0896S0p1 2 - FBEC8E9 oY 110°E8 UDEfEISU] (B4
IE08ETH6r | FITHOSOIE : . 0I'SLITE | LOGSLLT %01-S | SrITHLYOR z = S0L966'T [P SPL8LL Uauyoey 3 el
BSLOITEST [WLe bLRTTOL01 2 SIL6ELG | (88'9T0'LOI %SST |08FI9H9T | hLSTTOLOT = 8PITI9191 NTELENT Supng Loreioqe] ¥ Gowey
H9heLOr9 [ 9EECTHE 8eL1£91 ; S0SIFE | WK 0 0000ZTH9 | 8SL1EYT = 698799 90T PuE] ployase’] twia] 307
00075908 - y - - z : 0000§F90¢ g - SLLT9998F | STTL8L6l PUET Pt

183 ), 2 Sy 183 03] . a1 S N Jual oy Suun
| T | g | sy | SO | | 00| | g0 |
oj wounstlpy | pasodsq | s¥aep awy Ry iy . wougpY :
AN LT 0N - uogezpowry [ uogendaq 9T AON 150 B S)SSY pasyy

nogenaidaq] paygnumady ss3j1s0) Je spassy paty sugesadgy ¢

TIGOW @ANTVATY LY - INTIWAINOT ¥ INV1d ALNAOU 00°

Annual Report




Annual Report /2
90L'80'T68 | S8S°T1I9Z9 | - FOS'SLECL | 16T°€69°TSS 168°091°LISTT | - SPUGFLTL | OFETIFFFFT | BYELI®IOL 6107 dunp 0f
TIS'ESTIE6 | S90°ITO'L8Y | PSL'68EIT | S96°861°EL | S88°111°979 SLE'POT' 619 | 90TTIS'SL | €61°9SS'LIT | 168°091°LIS'T | eMBL®IOL  0TOT 2unf 0§
8TUTT | UI'9TT : SPEI0T | LT9T90T %0l | 09F'805°€ 0886¢ 08S°89F'€ AN % ANN|
9LLBOCOLL | 99LT060T | ¥BLGSETI | SPESIILT | SOTGLITGN %0C-01 |THSTITLLE | 90TTISSI | PSEE9T P6c 09K T6€ juowdinby uonepodsue |
ealh oy S rd VA3 . 808981 | $T9'V601 %0C-S1 | 8E68LLLI SLY'L89 9T 160'L snduwio)) 2y sdut] ‘spuawidmbyy
60T0Z6801 | H6S'9L90k - 119°99TS | £S6'60KSE %SI-¢L | 0896561 P8EC8S99 | 6IF°110°CS UONBEISU] [BARIY]
IEUSETHEr | PIIHOSOIE C S01SL9TE | LOOGTSLLT %0I-S | SPITHLHO8 SOL966ST | 1HH'SHLBLL Gaunpejy 3 ugd
0ELT8YITL | 1L9'EL8TN . 16L9V8S | 088°920°L01 %8-ST | 10F9SEHET SOI'E86ET | TELEDIT dupying Lojeioqe] % ojoe |
LTOLEEOL | 950998l - 0SFLZT | 986°8¢9l %Il | €90€ETTT 5 ezl pue pjoyasea] uuaj o'y
STTL8L6 . . . . . STTL/L6! - STL8L6 pue] ployaaLy

0Z0Z90/0€ | 0Z02/90/0S  |¥eaA Ay Suanp ampw 6107L0/10 0207/90/0€ hwﬁ Jea) ap Swarp| :
1V sy 1V B0, pasods Mmhﬁ._huﬁ 1V sy “-_How“ 1V [0, Mmo%swﬁ uoiIppy SISO Ve s SIEMAIME]
AM L7 a0\ - uopezpdowy ; uonenadaq 0'7 AN0ON =150 18 §)ISSY paniy

uonenadaq paemumnIY §53[150) 18 S1assy paxtg suprsado 1°¢

TAAOW L1S0D 1V - INIWNAINOA ¥ INVTd ‘ALYIdOUd 00°€



2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
4.00 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Opening Balance 237.848.130 144,404,773
Expenditure incurred during the year 56.499.612 164,298.220
294,347,742 308,702,993
Capitalized During the year (116.828.638) (70,854.863)
177,519,104 237,848,130
The Break up of Capital Work in Progress
Particiliss Balance as at 01 Inf:fl:l:]dll::::ng Capitalized Balance as at
July 2019 The Year [Puring The Year 30 June 2020
Factory & Laboratory Building 26534485 16,596,325 18.848.773 24.282.037
Software Development 1.880,827 470.000 - 2,350,827
Transportation Equipment 316446 12,502,778 263.354 12,555.870
Office Renovation 5.134.422 - 5134422 -
Power Sub Station 57.444.280 9.141.104 66.585.384 -
Land 120.540,965 17.789.405 - 138,330,370
Plant & Machmery 25.996.705 - 25.996.705 -
As At 30 June 2020 237.848,130 56.499.612 116,828,638 177,519,104
[As At 30 June 2019 144404773] 164298220| 70,854,863 | 237,848,130 |

5.00 INVESTMENT

Investment in it's Associated Company
Aramit Thai Aluminium Limite d

(50,000 shares @ Tk 100 each fully paid in cash)

Aramit Power Limited

(30.000 shares @ Tk 100 each fully paid in cash)

Aramit Alu Composite Limited

(32.750 shares @ Tk 100 each fully paid in cash)

5.000,000 5.000.000
1.782.500 1,782,500
32.750.000 32,750,000
39,532,500 39,532,500

5.1 Aramit Thai Alunmnmum Limited has been mcorporated on 14 September 2000 and has commenced its
comunercial production on 25 June 2002.The Authorized share capital of the Company is 5.000,000 ordmary
shares (@ Tk 100 each and the Issued. Subscribed and Paid up capital is 1.000.000 shares @ Tk 100 each. Out
of this Aramit Cement Limited Subscribed 30.000 Shares @ Tk 100 each. ATAL has issued 2 Rights Shares of
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face value of Tk 100 each for each 3 shares held by the existing shareholders on August 29. 2012 as a result
ACL now subscribed 50,000 shares @ Tk 100 each. i.e share holdmg position is 5%

5.2 Aramit Power Limmted has been mcorporated on 28 June 2004 and has commenced its conumnercial
production on 25 June 2005. The Authorized share capital of the Company is 1,000,000 ordinary shares @ Tk 100
each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital s 71.300 shares @ Tk 100 each. Out of this Aranut Cement
Limited Subscribed 17,825 Shares @ Tk 100 each i.e. share holding position is 25%.

5.3 Aramit Alu Composite Panels Ltd. has been mcorporated on 31 Aug 2009 and has conunenced its
commercial production on 01 Jan 2012.The Authorized share capital of the Company is 25,00,000 ordinary
shares @ Tk 100 each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital is 665.650 shares @ Tk 100 each. Out of
this Aramit Cement Limited Subscribed 327,500 Shares @ Tk 100 each . i.e share holding position 15 49.20%



6.00 INVENTORIES
Stock-in-trade - Note 6.1
Stores and spares

6.1 Stock-m-trade - Note 6
Raw materials
Packmng materials
Work-m-process
Materials in transit
Raw Materials
Spare Parts

7.00 TRADE RECEIVABLE
Dealers
Non dealers
Closmg balance

8.00 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Advances
Deposits
Prepayments

8.1 Advances - Note 8
For Income Tax
For Value Added Tax - VAT
For supplies
North South Transport Ltd.
For employees
Runner Motors Limited
For Others

8.2 Deposits - Note 8
Power Development Board
For Telecommumication (BTCL)
Linde Bangladesh Limited
CMES
BRAC

8.3 Prepayments - Note 8
Insurance
Advertisement
WASA
BSTI
Central Depositary Bangladesh Limited (CDBL)
Others

2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
67.571.184 92.849.474
56,027.525 35,174,194
123,598,709 128,023,668
30,593,033 44,578,427
4.681.772 3.633.249
7.176.069 3223525
22,939,558 39.196.693
2,180.752 2217580
67,571,184 92,849,474
364.247.780 375484.533
2.025.722.880 1.731.725.911
2.389.970.660  2.107,210,444
775,752,527 655.819.716
6.506,511 5431.837
4.846.556 6.644,795
787,105,594 667,896,348
372.054.734 360.096.859
159.504,295 119.879.544
11,707,888 12355302
180.881.204 142,152,006
2349510 1,187.874
32,370,000 %
16,884,896 20,148,131
775,752,527 655,819,716
2,799.600 2.799.600
38.500 38.500
8.000 8,000
3.472.896 2,535,737
187.515 50.000
6,506,511 5,431,837
2761225 3.489,128
476,694 429201
58333 58332
1.276.404 2,426,640
79.500 79.501
194.400 161,993
4,846,556 6,644,795
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2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
9.00 DUE FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Aramit Footwear Linited (AFL) - Note 9.01 240.329.263 239.436.819
Aramit Power Limited (APL) - Note 9.02 66.904.628 37.141.8396
Aramit Thai Aluminium Limited (ATAL) - Note 9.03 281.702.175 346.719.341
Aramit Alu Composite Panels Limited - Note 9.04 12.518.499 12.518.499
601.454.565 635.816.555
9.1 DUE FROM ARAMIT FOOTWEAR LIMITED (AFL)

Opening balance 239.436.819 238,349,027

Fund extended during the period 59.590,620 30214434

9.2

299,027,439 268,563,461
Interest earned during the period - Note 30

299,027,439 268,563,461

Re-paid / adjusted during the period (58.698.176) (29.126.642)
Closing balance 240.,329.263 239.436.819

Short term loan extended by Aramit Cement Lunited to Aramit Footwear Limited based on Compay's
Board's decision. wherein it was decided to treat the financing provided to AFL as short term loan carrying
mterest @ 15.50% per annum on monthly opening product with effect from 01 January 2006 to 30
September 2010 and mterest @ 13 % per annum from 01 October 2010 as per Board's decision dated 30
September 2010 and no mterest is charged from 01 January 2011 as per Compay's Board's decision dated
13 October 2011

DUE FROM ARAMIT POWER LIMITED (APL)

Opening balance 37.141.896 46820462
Fund extended during the period 84412933 21.646.550
121,554,830 68,467,012
Interest earned during the period - note 30 - .
121,554,830 68,467,012
Re-paid / adjusted during the period (54.650.202) (31.325.116)
Closing balance 66,904,628 37,141,896

Represents short term loan extended by Aramit Cement Limited to Aramit Power Limited mchiding
mterest @15.50% per annum on monthly opening product with effect from 1 January 2006 to 30
September 2010 and mterest @ 13 % from 01 October 2010. and mterest @ 5% from 25 March 2015.
The Board of Directors i their 112th meeting held on 15 September 2018 decided to discontinue charging
of mterest for two years with effect from 01 January 2018. And The Board of Directors m ther 122nd
meeting held on 28 June 2020 further decided to discontinue charging of mterest on balance amount due
from associate companies with effect from 01 January 2020 until otherwise decided by the Board.



2020 2019
TAKA TAKA

9.3 DUE FROM ARAMIT THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED (ATAL)
Opening balance 346,719,341 122.419.085

Fund extended during the period 97289013 778.997.791
444,008,354 901,416,876

Interest earned during the period - note 30

444,008,354 901,416,876

Re-paid / adjusted during the period (162.252.810) (554,697.535)
Closing balance 281,755,543 346,719,341

Represents short term loan extended by Aramit Cement Limited to Aramit Thai Aluminium Limited based
on respective Company's Board's decision incliding mterest @10% per annum on monthly opening
product with effect from 1 January 2001 fo 30 September 2010 and mterest @ 13% from 01 October
2010 and mterest @ 5% from 25 March 2015. The Board of Directors in their 112th meeting held on 15
September 2018 decided to discontmue charging of mterest for two years with effect from 01 January
2018. And The Board of Directors m ther 122nd meetmg held on 28 June 2020 further decided to
discontinue charging of mterest on balance amount due from associate companies with effect from 01
January 2020 until otherwise decided by the Board.
9.4 DUE FROM ARAMIT ALU COMPOSITE PANELS LTL
Opening balance 12518499 12518499
Fund extended durmng the period -
12,518,499 12,265,459
Interest earned during the period - note 30 -
12,518,499 12,574,064

Re-paid / adjusted during the period -

Closing balance 12,518,499 12,518,499
Represents short term loan extended by Aramit Cement Limited to Aramit Alu Composite Panels
Limited carrying interest @13.00% per anmum on monthly opening product with effect from 2011. and
which was revised further to 5% effected from 1 January 2015. The Board of Directors m therr 112th
meeting held on 15 September 2018 decided to discontmue charging of mterest for two years with effect
from 01 January 2018. And The Board of Directors in their 122nd meeting held on 28 June 2020 further
decided to discontinue charging of interest on balance amount due from associate companies with effect
from 01 January 2020 until otherwise decided by the Board.

10.00 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Insurance claim receivable 2.450,000 2.800.000
Receivable for sale of fixed assets 376,050 6.050
Others 92,905 92,905 g
2,918,955 2,898,955 =
11.00 CASH AND BANK BALANCES g
Balances with scheduled banks —
Current accounts (Annexure-1) (12.551.690) 26725617 g
Short term deposits (STD, BG & FDR) 96,932,374 49929713 -
84,380,684 76,655,330 (—]
Cash in hand 279,021 558298 -

84,659,705 77,213,628

o
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2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
12.00 SHARE CAPITAL
12.1 Authorized Capital
50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
12.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Paid-up m cash
30,440,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk 10 each (A) 304.400.000 304.400,000
For consideration other than cash
500.000 Ordinary Shares of Tk 10 each (B) 5,000,000 5,000,000
30,940,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk 10 each (A+B) 309.400.000 309,400,000
Issued as Bonus Share
2,940,000 Ordinary Share of Tk 10 Each (C) 29,400,000 29.400.000
33.880.000 Ordmary Share of Tk 10 Each (A+B+C) 338.800.000 338.800,000
I 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
12.3 Position of share holding 29 Taka % Taka
Sponsors
Aramit Limited 10.20% 65,340,000 19.29% 65.340.000
Directors & others 14.97% 50,723,200 14.97% 50,723,200
Bangladesh Development Bank Limited 6.43% 21,780,000 6.43% 21,780,000
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 6.45% 21,860,330 6.45% 21.860.330
47.14% 159,703,530 47.14% 159,703,530
General Public
Institutions 14.94% 50,614,700 16.23% 54,986,740
Others 37.92% 128,481,770 36.63% 124,109,730
52.86% 179.096.470 52.86% 179,096,470
1000%% 338,800,000 100% 338,800,000
The distribution schedule showing the number of shareholders and their shareholding percentage as on 30 June 2020
e is as follows :
2020 || 2019
R f Holdin N0k Hlro ozsm 9% of Holdings | | % of Holdin
ange of Holdings Shareholders || O °f Shares of Holdings o of Holdings
Less than 500 Shares 1954 330,568 0.98 0.98
501 Shares to 5.000 Shares 1,970 3,647,551 10.77 11.50
From 5.001 Shares to 10.000 Shares 324 2442675 7.21 6.80
From 10,001 Shares to 20.000 Shares 141 2,021,512 597 6.18
From 20.001 Shares to 30.000 Shares 49 1.184.667 3.50 3.59
From 30.001 Shares to 40.000 Shares 26 895497 2.64 2.70
From 40,001 Shares to 50.000 Shares 11 511,372 151 1.51
From 50,001 Shares to 100,000 Shares 23 1,503,000 444 4.21
From 100,001 Shares to 1.000.000 Shares 11 2,096,152 6.19 5.71
More than 1,000,000 Shares 3 19.247.006 56.81 56.81
4,514 33,880,000 100.00 100.00
12.5 SHARE PREMIUM 84,700,000 84,700,000




13.00 GENERAL RESERVE
Opening Balance
Transferred during the period
Closing Balance

14.00 TERM LOAN & LEASE FINANCE
Loan from Banks & Financial Institutions
Due within one year
Due after more than one year

A) Fareast Finance & Investment Limited
Due within one year

Due after more than one year

B) International Leasing and Financial Services Limited
Due within one year
Due after more than one year

C) FSIBL
Due within one year
Due after more than one year

D) Lankabangla Finance Limited
Due within one year
Due after more than one year

2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
26,000,000 26,000,000
26,000,000 26,000,000
210,346,144 195.561.129
341964329 397.653.136
552,310,473 593,214,265
4,661,608 23.887.526
i 3.390.758
4,661,608 27,278,284
6.333.045 5.844.383
4,089,788 10.163.069
10,422,833 16,007,453
215297348 153.012.647
315572825 377710672
530,870,172 530,723,319
6,355,860 12,816,572
: 6,388,637
6,355,860 19,205,209

o
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2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
15.00 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Opening Balance 54,181,359 35.458.134
Provision made during the period 204.711.701 18,723.225
258,893,060 54,181,359
Realized during the period - -
Closing Balance 258,893,060 54,181,359
Taxable/
Deferred Tax Liability Caying Tax Base [eanctahie)
. Amount Temporary
Difference
As on 30 June 2020
Property Plant & Equipment =
1.675.670.952 602.346.990 1.073.323.962
(Except Freehold & Leasehold land) :
Employees' Ratiral Gratuaity (36.978.021)| | 773701 | | (37.751.722))
1,035,572,241
Applicable Tax rate 25.00%
Closing Balance 258,893,060
Deferred tax recognition:
To statement of comprehensive mcome 18.761.035
Adpsted with revaluation surplus 185.950.666
204,711,701
As on 30 June 2019
Property Plant & Equipment
867.149.417 620,284,672 246.864.746
(Except Freehold & Leasehold land)
Employees' Ratiral Gratuaity (30.577.100)| | 437788 || (30.139312)]
216,725,434
Applicable Tax rate 25%
Closing Balance 54,181,358
16.00 EMPLOYEE RATIRAL GRATUATY - Note 2.11.1
Openmg balance 30.139312 23,664.070
Provided during the year 8.386.111 6.913,032
38,525,423 30,577,101
Paid during the year (773.701) (437.788)
Closing Balance Taka 37,751,722 30,139,312
17.00 CURRENT PORTION OF TERM LOAN & LEASE FINANCE
Fareast Finance & Investment Linited 4,661,608 23.887.526
International Leasing and Fiancial Services Limited 6.333.045 5.844.383
First Security Islami Bank Limited 192,995.630 153,012,647
Lankabangla Fmance Limited 6.355.860 12.816.572
210,346,143 195,561,129




18.00 REDEEMABLE DEBENTURES
Current portion

The break up:

Institutions
Principal
Interest

Public

19.00 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
The Make-up
For Other fmance
For Supplies
For Revenue expenses
For Capital expenditures

19.1 Other finance - Note 19
Security deposit refundable - dealers & contractors
Tax & VAT deduction at source payable
Provision for doubtful debts
Provident Fund (PF)
Insurance

19.2 Capital expenditures - Note 19
Plant & machmery
Erection & mstallation

20.00 PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
Opening Balance
Provision made during the period

Adpstment made during the period
Closing Balance

2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
17.811.065 17.836.805
17,811,065 17,836,805
2.658857 2.658.857
438,652 438,652
3,097,509 3,097,509
14.713,556 14739296
17,811,065 17,836,805
12.429,547 13,769.923
271.826.754 558.928.778
14851478 9,526,099
654,747 654,747
299,762,526 582,879,546
2.025.000 2,030,000
7.245.196 8.831.874
1.659.312 1,659,312
1.239.086 1,030,527
260953 218210
12,429,547 13,769,923
636,565 636,565
18.182 18,182
654,747 654,747
45965,125 34,767.893
84.836.869 11.197.232
130,801,994 45,965,125
(48.456.231) -
82,345,763 45,965,125

the company mcurred loss before provision of mcome tax hability of the company will be as per section 82C

of income tax ordinance 1984

Revenue
Add : Other income

Tax liability under section 82C and sub section 4 of income tax
ordinance 1984, i.e 0.60% on gross receipt

Tax liability under section 82C and Sub-section 9 of income tax

ordmance 1984

So, Tax liability during the year (Whichever is higher)
Short Provision made for previous assessment
Cwrrent year tax provision

1.932,676.820

1.862.346.781

1.063.377 3.858.536
1,933,740,197  1,866,205,317
11.602.441 11,197.232
50.187.297 =
50,187,297 11,197,232
34,649,572 -
84,836,869 11,197,232

o

uoday jenuuy

0



21.00 PROVISION FOR WPPF & WF
Openmg Balance
Addition during the period
Interest incurred during the period

Paid during the period
Closing Balance

22 SHORT TERM LOAN
Bank Overdraft & LTR:
Bank Asia Limited
Social Islami Bank Limnited
Jamuna Bank Limited
South Bangla Agricultural Bank Limited
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited

23.00 DUE TO ASSCIATED COMPANIES

Aramit Steel Pipes Limited (ASPL)
Openmng balance
Fund received during the period

Interest charged during the period - note 29
Re-paid / adjusted during the period
Closing balance

24.00 DIVIDEND
24.1 UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
Year wise breakup

Interim - 2000
Fmal - 2000
Fmal - 2001
Fmal - 2002
Fmal - 2007
E Fmal - 2009
—] Fmal - 2012
E Fmal - 2013
; Fmal - 2014
o Interim - 2015
k—]
(-]
=

70

2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
31335 31,335
31,335 31,335
31,335 31,335
65.442.569 .
- 80.819.893
96.530.535 34185322
557.519.871 582,170,817
3507.039.716  2.671.507.049
Taka 4,226,532,692 3.368,683,081

44.661.240 || (11.258.187)
460356 209.807.074
45,121,596 198,548,887
45,121,596 198,548,887
(21.243208) (153.887.647)
23,878,388 44,661,240
96.180 96.180
70.740 70,740
538.590 538.590
795425 795.425
2693474 2.693.474
461446 461 446
1.165.155 1.165.155
3,830.406 3.830.406
4,779.729 4.779.729
5.401.887 5401.887
1433438 1.433.438
21,266,471 21,266,471




25.00 NET TURNOVER

251

The make-up
Proceeds from sales:
Local
Export

Deductions there from:

Value Added Tax (VAT)

26.00 COST OF GOODS SOLD

26.1

Raw materials

Packing materials
Factory overhead
Opening work in process
Closmg work in process

FACTORY OVERHEAD
Personnel expenses

Salary, wages and allowances

Overtime

Bonus

Casual labour
Gratuity - note 16
Provident fund
Welfare and benefits

Depreciation - note 3.3
Electricity

Stores consumption

Vehicle munning expenses
Repamrs and mamtenance
Entertamment

Factory msurance

Rates, taxes & renewal fees
Carrying & handling

Office supplies & stationery
Traveling and conveyance
Testng fee

Generator running expenses
Telecommunication expenses
Newspapers & periodicals
Uniform & Liveries

Postage & courier

2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
1.921,768.590 1.906.191.239
260,985,564 204,789,182
2,182,754,154  2.110,980,421
(250.665.468) (248.633.640)
1.932,088.686  1.862.346.781
1.110.229.260 1.023.547.587
110.788.067 112.347.609
313.699.676 377.308.590
3.223,525 11,016,922
(7.176,069) (3223.525)
1.530,764.459  1,520,997.183
31277207 39,858,127
7.390,837 6.860.497
3.568.099 3.616.449
5337454 5470264
3.336.074 2820901
2.125208 1.887.123
111.142 291,631
53,146,021 60,804,992
57277.158 71,575,761
103,074,067 129.226,168
24,659,309 36,826,641
62,437,500 64.406.250
2711233 3,746,533
1,095,240 1.633.651
5.759.466 4820875
1.529.976 1.857,122
371412 389,386
540,023 703.888
166,122 187,518
473,565 399225
50,402 281.250
296,750 272.885
1.850 2,680
108,780 173.665
800 100
313,699,676 377,308,590
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27.00 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Personnel expenses
Salary and allowances
Overtime
Bonus
Casual Labour
Gratuity - note 18.2
Provident fund
Welfare and benefits

Office rent, rates & renewal fees
AGM expenses

Legal & professional fees
Audit fee

Depreciation - note 3.3
Telephone & fax
Uniform & Liveries
Vehicle mnning expenses
Entertainment

Travelng and conveyance
Prmntmg & stationeries
Oftice supples

Intemet Expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Advertisement

Utility expenses - Dhaka Share office

Director's fees

Inswrance

Postage & courier

Board meeting expenses
Newspapers & periodicals

28.00 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Personnel expenses
Salary and Allowances
Overtime
Bonus
Gratuity - note 16
Provident fund
Welfare & benefits

Expenses for Export Sales
Depreciation - note 3.3
Advertisement

Sales Promotional Expenses
Vehicle running expenses
Entertamment

Office supplies & stationery
Travelmg and conveyance
Telephone

Insurance

Postage and courier

2020 2019
TAKA TAKA

29.175313 26719475
3.247.750 3206449
3,189,520 3,131,759
24,030 137490
3,022,138 2794282
1.911.200 1.660.863
843329 800,031
41,413,280 38,450,349
773,640 1,019205
573,955 460.124
574,340 418,670
120,000 100,000
3336782 1,902,833
276,104 295915
77.922 251671
1,687,500 2,250,000
2,178276 267576
898,567 1027288
265,753 358,530
215971 244800
120,685 150,758
240,749 192,175
491,075 456200
667.675 692.560
400,000 310,000
433449 384,830
87,628 18302
196,372 156262
12,335 15.500
55,042,058 51,423,548
26279.148 26,661.150
1.296,523 1,547,744
2,722,884 2,709.930
2,027,899 1.297.849
1,469,552 1.359.470
907,766 234678
34,703,772 33,810,821
27212952 27,326,673

19.669,007 =
583250 1,739,700
6,451,120 4055970
16,312,500 12.937.500
2,634,614 3,308,884
225.559 291290
1,145,393 2072419
1,021,620 1,034257
4,797,403 3,380,769
10816 10733
114,768,006 89,969,016




2020 2019
TAKA TAKA
29.00 FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Interest on Loan 359.476,253 343,934,543
Interest on debentures - 2.840571
Bank charges 1.807,284 1.704.657
361,283,537 348,479,771
30.00 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Inferest income on STD. FDR & BG 823,496 2224608
Loss on sale of non current assets (1417422) -
Foreign Currency Fluctuation Gain / (Loss) 588.134 -
Sale of Wastage 1.069.169 1.633.928
1.063,377 3,858.536
31.00 NET ASSETS VALUE PER SHARE
The computation of NAV Per Share is given below:
Total Assets 6.388.880,745 4.787.488.936
Less: Total Liabilities 5.520.583.494 4.758,858.540
Net Assets Value (NAYV) 868,297,251 28,630,396
Weighted average no. of ordinary shares outstanding during the Year 33.880,000 33.880.000
Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share 25.63 0.85

Reason for deviation of NAV as on June 30, 2020 compare to the date June 30, 2019 is due to revaluation surplus capitalization as on
31 December, 2019.

32.00 EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)
The computation of EPS is given below:

Earnings attributable to the ordinary shareholders (232.303,901) (174.584.658)
Weighted average no. of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 33.880.000 33,880,000
Basic Earnings per Share (6.86) (5.15)

Reasons for deviation in Earnings per Share (EPS) compared to the previous period is due to increase ncome fax expenses.

33.00 OPERATING CASH FLOW PER SHARE

The computation of Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share is given below:

Net Operating Cash Flows (Annexure-2) (408.659,066) (312,854,138)
Weighted average no. of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 33,880,000 33,880,000
Operating cash inflow/(outflow) per share (12.06) (9.23)

Negative figure of net operating cash flow per share is increased compared to the last year due to increase payment of suppliers and

others,

34.00 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, MANAGERS, EXECUTIVES & OFFICERS

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Particulars Managing Other Total Managing Other Total g
Director Executives Director Executives

Salaries and Allowance 240,000 62,403,998 62,643,998 2,400,000 58.632,517 61.032517 —
Medical Expenses - 1.862.237 1,862,237 = 1,326,340 1.326.340 =
Providend Fund = 4.192. 408 4,192,408 - 3.717.125 3.717.125 a
Gratuity - 6.676,107 6.676.107 - 5,409,736 5.409.736 -
Total 240,000 75.134,750 75,374,750 2,400,000 69,085,718 71,485,718 g

In 2020 there were 241 number of employees and in 2019 there were 246 number of employees - excluding Managing Directors. The S
Chief Operating Officer & Chief Fmancial Officer, General Manager (Operation) and General Manager (Sales & Marketing) are :

each provided . primarily for the Company's business, with a chauffeur driven car at the Company’s cost.

Company (ACL) reimburses the Chief Operating Officer & Chief Financial Officer and General Manager (Operation) residential

telephone chargers up to a set limit as beign incurred for the Company’s business.

w




35.00 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company carried out a number of fransactions with related parties m the normal course of business on

arms length basis
Sl g 2020 2019
N fthe Party Relati Nat fT ti
No ame of the Party elation ature of Transaction TAKA TAKA
" : 2 Sale of Fmished Product and
1 ‘?‘r_agnfmlfgfs ACS sociated |\ tterm lan facilties| (23878388)| (44.661240)
ARRRCSTe 40 OMPany 1, vailed without interest
: . .. . Sale of Fiushed Product and
Aramit Thai Ak As ted g
o | AT Ihar Alummtm | ASSOCEIEd o0 i term  loan  facilities| 281755543 || 346719341
Limited - note 9.03 Company : -
allowed without mterest
3 Aramit Footwear Lmited | Associated Short~tem? loan f-'aciﬁti:s 240329963 239436819
note 92.01 Company |allowed without interest
: i : Short-term  loan facilities
Aramit Power Lmited |Associated
i i | 37.141.
A - note- /00 Pl allowed without .lnterest and 66,904,628 7,141.896
: : ____purchase of services
5 Aramit AFu F‘ompos:te Associated Short-tc@ loan facﬂmes 12.518.499 12.518.499
Panels Limifed - note | Company |allowed without interest
6 N?n}l South Transport |Associated Fma{lcmg. and purchase of 180.881.204 142.152.006
Limited - note 8.01 | Company |service

36.00 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
1. Commissioner of Customs, Excise & VAT of Chittagong raised a demand agamst evasion of VAT
amounting Tk 33,068.548.12 under litigation no: 08/2012 dated 12 March 2012. To protest agamnst their
demand. lots of genume documents were furnished to the Customs. Excise & VAT dept. based on which
the commissioner passed a verdict (no. 12/2014. dated 26 June 2014) making the Company liable to pay Tk.
8.155.216 . But the Company did not agree to the decision & filed a case to the Appellate tribunal Dhaka
agamst the verdict of Chittagong commissioner.
The Appellate tribunal of Dhaka checked all genuine papers & documents and thereafter sent back the file
to the Commissioner of Customs. Excise & VAT, Chittagong with a request to settle the case repeating the
earlier verdict passed by them.
Now the case is still undecided with the VAT authority at Chittagong Customs, Excise & VAT.

2. Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited Bank Guarantee No: 174/19, Dated: 27th August, 2019 for BDT
1.78.36.805 issued m favor of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh-Trustee for the debenture
holders for redeemable debentures.

3. The Company is liable to pay an amount of BDT 40.946.730 with regard to pending mcome tax
assessment year 2017-2018 & 2018-2019 as on Balance Sheet date,

37.00 GENERAL
37.1 Wherever considered necessary, previous period's figures & phrases have been re-arranged to
conform to this period's presentation.
37.2 Figures appearing m these accounts have been rounded off to the nearest taka.
37.3 Figure m bracket denotes negative.
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Aramit Cement Limited
Current Accounts Balance
As At June 30, 2020

(Annexure-1)
. 1 Balance
Bank Name Branch Name A/C Type A/C No 3020 3010

AB Bank Lmuted Bahaddarhat cD 4130760862000 121326 568.266
AB Bank Lumted Bahaddarhat BG 4130760862000 3,066,591 2839935
Al-Arafah Islamm Bank Ltd Muradpur CcD 4244 351.694 4019243
Bank Asia Ltd. Agrabad D 533006486 467348 4835497
Basic Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road cD 1310010022630 4273859 135814
Comunercial Bank of Ceylon Agrabad cD 10087 - 2227
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Agrabad STD 70069 - 1320
Eastern Bank Ltd. Chandgaon cD 7128013950 1391.801 136378
EXIM Bank Ltd. Agrabad CcD 003111384041 80956 55378
Frrst Securtty Islami Bank Ltd. Apgrabad cD 010411112019 14.189.044 1.628.594
Islanu Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat cD 801000 4585899 (941.634)
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd Bahaddarhat BG 16312 91220 91220
Islanu Bank Bangladesh Lid. Bahaddarhat BG 16413 66350 66350
Islam Bank Bangladesh Lid. Bahaddarhat BG 16514 81.070 81.070
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 16615 44.500 44.500
Islanu Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 16716 96910 96910
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd Bahaddarhat BG 16817 62300 62300
Islanu Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 16918 57.640 57.640
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 17010 40500 40.500
Islanu Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 17212 100,000 100.000
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd Bahaddarhat BG 17313 98.010 98010
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd Bahaddarhat BG 17414 1.800.000 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 17515 45800 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Lid. Bahaddarhat BG 17717 30960 -
Islanu Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 17900 365,500 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 18011 455,600 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd Bahaddarhat BG 18112 100.000 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 18213 327.000 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat BG 18314 737.100 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd Bahaddarhat BG 18516 357,500 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd Bahaddarhat FDR 490318 573267 543.170
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat FDR 540800 - 20,022,522
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat FDR 549405 - 16.000.000
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Bahaddarhat FDR 574504 65,089.353 -
Jamuna Bank Ltd. Agrabad FDR 83703 11,140.250
Jamuna Bank Ltd. Agrabad cD 00050214659 258 6255
Janata Bank Ltd. Sheikh Mujib Road cD 003333010859 (475210) 1.627.094
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. Kahwghat Ind. Estate CcD 1807 70.776 807541
Meghna Bank Ltd. Agrabad cD 2101111231 412848 362488
NCC Bank Ltd. Khatungonj STD 0004032535 171,074 171914
NCC Bank Ltd. Khatngon) cD 00040215494 196076 619298
NRB Bank Lid. Agrabad cD 01111122208 48317 1,081.020
Omne Bank Ltd. Anderlalla cD 4918 636.055 550381
Premuer Bank Ltd Chawkbazar cD 183 17,735 1,700
Premier Bank Ltd. Khatungonj cD 01404 (73.970) 710,795
Pubali Bank Ltd. Bahaddarhat cD 687901037980 756476 3384018
Rupah Bank Ltd. Rupah Sadan CD 200116215 180339 1,390.537
Social Islanu Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road cD 0231330010598 9444128 2923
Sonali Bank Ltd, Kalirghat Ind. Estate STD 0043000247 25663426 843,897
Standard Bank Lid. Khatungon) cD 00333005161 342392 72420
State Bank of Inda Agrabad cD 05263420001 17,799 18489
State Bank of Inda Agrabad ERQ 05263420202 127 192
South Banlga Agncultwal Bank Ltd. Agrabad cD 000411150787 23,300,000 23,457.084
Trust Bank Ltd. Khatungon) cD 00150210008742 100819 -
Umnion Bank Ltd, Muradpur cD 5425 126865 425286
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Bahaddarhat cD 7911117148 (83.388516) (21,320388)
Umnted Commercnal Bank Ltd. Bahaddarhat ERQ 00278 274032 70.852
Umited Conunercial Bank Ltd. Tejgaon cD 0438 15,028 25,773
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Bahaddarhat STD 00707 477294 468.138
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Agrabad cD 000411150787 10,763 421 152.161

Total Tk. 84,380,684 76,655,328
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ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED

RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Annexure-2

Net profit

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Adjustment for Advance Income Tax

Adjustment for Provision of Deferred Tax

Adjustment for non-operating items

Interest income on FDR and STD

Interest on loans

Bank charges

Interest on Debenture

Gain/(loss) on sale of fixed assets

Adjutment for changes in accruals

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

(Increase)/ Decrease - Trade Recemvables

(Increase) / Decrease in Advances. Deposits & prepayments
(Increase) / Decrease in Other receivables

Increase /(Decrease) in Creditors and accruals
Adjustment for excess of gratuity provision over payment
Adjustment for excess of tax provision over payment
Net cash (used in) /generated by operating activities

2020 2019
Taka Taka

(232.303.901) (174.584.658)
80.282.947 73.478.594
(588.134) (1.690.056)

(48.456.231) -
18,761.035 18,723.225
(823.496) (2.224.608)
359.476,253 343934543
1.807.284 1.704.657
- 2.840571

1,417,422 -
4424959 68.652.684
(282,760.216) (380,454.050)
(119.209.245) (68,220.087)
(20.000) 350,000
(283.117.021) (213.037.428)
7.612.410 6475244
84.836.869 11197232
(408.659,066) (312,854,138)
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The Board of Director

Aramit Cement Limited

53, Kalurghat Heavy Industrial Estate
P.O : Mohara, Chattogram-4208

December 22,2019

Dear Sir,

Report on Valuation of Land Properties (both free and lease hold) and Factory & Laboratory Building of
Aramit Cement Limited (ACL) as on May 31, 2019.

With reference to your appointment letter dated May 03, 2019, we have the pleasure in submitting herewith
our report on valuation of land properties (both free and lease hold) and factory & laboratory building of
Aramit Cement Limited (ACL) as on May 31, 2019.

This revaluation assignment has been performed in accordance with the applicable standards, guidelines and
practice relevant to Non-Current assets valuation. Those procedures require that we plan and perform the
assignment to arrive at areasonable fair market value of land properties (both free and lease hold) and factory
& laboratory building of the company as of the date of valuation (i.e May 31, 2019).

We have estimated the value of land properties (both free and lease hold) and factory & laboratory building of
the Aramit Cement Limited under estimated Net Realizable value method (the market approach) as well as
the replacement cost approach depending on the nature of the assets and rational as mentioned in the
detailed report.

This report has been prepared based on information provided by the concerned management of Aramit
Cement Limited up to May 31, 2019. We have not undertaken any work to update our report for events and
circumstances arising after May 31, 2019.

The estimated value of land properties (both free and lease hold) and factory & laboratory building that
results from this valuation assignment is expressed as a conclusion of value as of valuation date (i.e May 31,
2019). The user of this appraisal report is expected to appreciate that a valuation of this nature is a subjective
exercise and any two appraisers are unlikely to arrive at the same valuation.

Based on the observable and unobservable data, information, analysis and estimates contained in our
detailed report aggregate fair value of the land properties (both free and lease hold) and factory & laboratory
buildings of the Aramit Cement Limited as at May 31, 2019 stood at Taka 1,391,648,286 as against book value
of Taka 133,726,863 resulting in a surplus of Taka 1,257,921,423 which are depicted in the following manner:

78

Re-Valued Revaluation
Book Value
Amount Surplus (Taka)
Class of fesctn (Taka) as on | (Taka) as O | as on May 31,
May 31, 2019 ¥t 2019
Free-Hold Land Properties 506,450,000 19,787,225 486,662,775
Lease-Hold Land Properties 644,220,000 10,591,305 633,628,695
E Factory and Laboratory Building 240,978,286 103,348,333 137,629,953
= Total: 1,301,648,286 | 133,726,863 1,257,021,423
— We take this opportunity to express our thanks and deep appreciation for the courtesy and cooperation
2 extended to us during the course of our works.
=
g Thank you.
- Yours truly,




1.00 PRELUDE

Valuation of non-current asset is a technique that may be required to accurately describe the true
value of the capital goods a business own at a stipulated cut-off date. In other words it is a process of
estimating what the non-current assets of a business is worth.

Fair value is the estimated amount for which a property should be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently, and without compulsion.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between the market participants at the
measurement date (i.e. an exit price). This definition of fair value emphasizes that fair value is a
market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. When measuring fair value, an
entity uses the assumption that the market participants would use when pricing the asset under
current market conditions, including assumptions also about risk. As a result, an entity’s intention to
hold an asset is not relevant when measuring fair market value.

Fair value measurement requires determination of the followings:

. The particular asset being measured;

The highest and best use of the relevant assets;

The market in which an orderly transaction would take place for the asset; and

The use of appropriate valuation techniques when measuring the fair value.

2.00 OBJECTIVES OF VALUATION:

The purpose of this appraisal is solely to provide an independent valuation opinion in order to
ascertain present value of all Land Properties (both freehold and lease hold) and Factory &
Laboratory Buildings of the company for management decision making purpose and eventually to
incorporate in the financial statements of the company so that carrying value of the said assets does
not differ materially from its fair value. The intended users of this appraisal report are the
concerned management of the company.

3.00 RATIONALITY OF VALUATION:

The conventional historical financial statements do not provide value of Non-current Assets of any
business at present representative cost. As such concerned management of the company require
more accurate and reliable information (both financial and non-financial) about the company’s true
state of affairs specially with regard to Non-Current Assets in terms of present market value so that
they may be able to make well informed prudent economic decision. Keeping these views in the
mind, the concerned management of Aramit Cement Limited has sought to conduct a
comprehensive valuation of all Land Properties and Factory & Laboratory Buildings belonging to the
company. Consequently, MRH DEY & CO. Chartered Accountants has been engaged by the
concerned management of Aramit Cement Limited to appraise the present market value of all Land
Properties and Factory & Laboratory Buildings.

4.00. STANDARD AND PREMISES OF VALUE:

Before appraising of any asset, the valuation assignment must specify the reason for and
circumstances surrounding the valuation. These are formally known as the standard and premise of
value. The standard of value is the hypothetical condition under which the particular assets will be
valued. The premise of value relates to the assumptions, such as
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Whether the business will continue forever in its current form (going concern), or
Whether the value of the assets lies in the proceeds from the sale at fair market value.

In appraising the value of all Land Properties and Factory & Laboratory Building of Aramit Cement
Limited we assumed that business of the Company will continue for foreseeable futureinits present
form without any significant modification. In other word, the valuation was performed under the
premise of value in continued use as going concern business enterprise. In our opinion this premise
of value represents the highest and best use of the assets.

5.00 SCOPE OF WORKS

As delineated in our appointment letter, the scope of said assignment is to perform a comprehensive
valuation of following class of Property, Plant & Equipments belonging to Aramit Cement Limited as
at May 31, 2019.

. Land Properties both free hold and leasehold,
. Factory and Laboratory Buildings,
6.00 VALUATION TEAM:

After receiving the work order from the concerned management of Aramit Cement Limited we
MRH DEY & CO., Chartered Accountants mobilized a team of following experts and supporting
professionals.

Engagement Partner Haradhan Dey,B.Com(Hon’'s),M.Com, FCA
Engagement Director Sumon Chandra Dey, MBA, FCA

Engagement Manager Mostafa Akbar, MBA, CA Part qualified

Engagement Expert Sohail Mohammed Shakoor-BSC in Architecture (BUET)
Team Member Ms. Riza Akter, MBA, CA Part qualified

Team Member Md. Rashel, MBA, CA Part qualified

7.00 EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION:
The effective date of valuation is May 31, 2019.

8.00 OVERVIEW OF THE PROJECT:

Legal Status :Aramit Cement Limited, a Public company with limited liability by shares
was incorporated on August 19, 1995 vide Registration No. CH-1994 under
the Companies Act 1994. Subsequently the company was listed with the
Chattogram Stock Exchange (CSE) in September 16, 1998 and Dhaka Stock
Exchange (DSE) in November 10, 1999 respectively.

Location :The corporate and factory office of Aramit Cement Limited is situated at
53, Kalurghat Heavy Industrial Estate, PO: Mohara, Chattogram-4208,
Bangladesh.

Nature of the project : The principal activities of the company are manufacturing of Portland
cement and allied products and marketing thereof.
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Capital Structure : The authorized capital of the company is Tk. 500,000,000
(Taka Five Hundred Million) only divided into 50,000,000
(Fifty Million) ordinary shares of Tk.10 (Taka Ten) each. Its
paid up capital is Tk.338,800,000 (Taka Three Hundred Thirty
Eight Million and Eight Hundred thousand) Only divided into
33,880,000 (Thirty Three Million Eight Hundred Eighty
Thousand) ordinary shares of Tk.10 (Taka Ten ) each.

Management and Shareholders :Itis managed by a Board of Directors consisting of one
Chairman, one Managing Director and Four Directors. The
Board of Directors and shareholders of the company as per
certified copy of Annual Return (Schedule-X) dated
18.12.2018 is stated below:

Name il Designation
shares held

Mr.S.M Jamal Ahmed “ Chairman
Mrs. Rukhmila Zaman - Managing Director
Mr.A_.K.M Hamidur Rahman - Director
Ms. Shukla Das = Director
Mr. S.M Rezaur Rahman < Director
Mr.Md.Towhidul Anowar - Director
Aramit Limited 6,534,000 Shareholder
e Do hprel 2,178,000 Shareholder
Investment Corporation of 2,186,033 shareholder
Bangladesh
General Institutions and Others | 17,909,647 Shareholder
Mr. Saifuzzaman Chowdhury 5,072,320 Shareholder

Total: 33,880,000
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Project Area : 357.90 Decimal (Approximately)

Commercial Operation:The Company commenced its intended commercial operation on and since
November 10, 1999.

9.00 METHODOLOGY APPLIED:

The following methodology has been applied in relation to the performance of the subject
assignment:

Entrance Meeting

We held an entrance meeting with the concerned personnel responsible for maintaining all books
and records relating to the Property, Plant & Equipments of the company both at factory &
administrative office in order to confirm the terms and conditions relating to our services.

Determination of Overall Objectives
At the time of entrance meeting the overall detail requirement of the management in relation to the
said assignment have been discussed and agreed.

Determination of the Course of Action

After having information with regard to the requirements of the organization we determined our
course of action so that we could perform the assignment efficiently, effectively and in a timely
manner.

Deputation of Team

After preparation of the work plan, orientation was given to the team members and work was
allocated to each team member. The team was deputed to the client office upon discussion with the
management. We also deputed required experts who possess adequate knowledge in respective
areas with regard to the valuation.

Collection of Data

We have obtained required information through consultation, inquiring of the management
personnel, observing the system, inspecting (physical verification of all said Non-current assets),
Confirmation (in applicable cases), recalculating and checking the related documents.

Preparation and Submission of Draft Report

After collecting and reviewing all required data, a draft report has been prepared with assigning
value to each classes of the Land properties and Factory & Laboratory Buildings and submitted the
same to the management of the company for their comment (if any).

Preparation and Submission of Final Report
After considering the stated comment (if any) we have finalized the valuation report and submitted
to the concerned management of the company.
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10.00 APPROACH OF VALUATION:
Three different approaches are commonly used in ascertaining fair market value of tangible
non-current assets such as (a) the income approach, (b) the market approach and (c) the cost
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approach (depreciated replacement cost approach). Within each of these approaches, there are
various techniques for determining the present value of Non-current assets. These approaches are
briefly described below for clarity:

Income Approach:

The income approaches determine fair market value based on the assumption that the fair market
value of the fixed assets is equal to the sum of the present values of the expected future benefit
streams generated by the same. In other words, the value is based on the company’s future ability to
generate income by efficient and effective utilization of the said assets. The one common method
within this approach is the discounted cash flow (DCF) method typically used.

Market Approach/NRV Approach:

The theory of the market approach is that the value of an asset is determined based on comparison
to similar assets for which values are known. These comparable assets might be recently sold. When
applying the market approach, the analyst must be careful in determining what types of assets are
truly comparable to the subject Non-current Assets.

Cost Approach:

Cost approach is that which is based on the concept of replacement cost as an indicator of value.
The replacement cost is the sum of money which would have to be spent at the present time to
reproduce a physical property or to acquire an asset identical to that in existence at the present
time and used for the economic benefit of the company. After ascertaining the replacement cost of
the asset, depreciation against use of the asset over the period from putting the asset into use is
estimated to arrive at a depreciable replacement cost of an asset.

11.00 APPROACH OF VALUATION SELECTED AND APPLIED:

Considering the pros and cons of the above mentioned three approaches we have followed
following two approaches in the determination of fair market value of the said class of non-current
assets of the Aramit Cement Limited:

. Market Approach/NRYV approach in case of Land Properties both free hold and lease hold;
. Cost / Replacement cost approach in case of Factory & Laboratory Building.

12.00 ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR ASSETS VALUATION
This report should be read and used in the light of following assumption and constraints pertaining
to the valuation assignment:

a) The conclusion of value arrived at herein is valid only for the stated purpose as of the date of
the valuation:

b) Information regarding Land Properties and Factory & Laboratory Building provided by
management of Aramit Cement Limited or its representatives, in the course of this
engagement, have been accepted without any verification on our part as fully and correctly
reflecting the company’s said Non-current Assets, except as specially noted herein. We
have not audited, reviewed, or compiled the financial information provided to us and,
accordingly, we express no audit opinion or any other form of assurance on this
information.
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c)

f)

j)

k)

Except for the assignment of valuation we have no other interest in respect of other issues
of the company.

We do not assume any commercial liability regarding the actual realizable amount of the
valued Land Properties and Factory & Laboratory Building.

We have applied our best efforts to include all physical assets under two broad classes of
non-current assets as per records of the company and information provided by company’s
personnel. We also verified the physical existence of the assets with the co-ordination of
company's personnel. The state of the Land Properties and Factory & Laboratory Building
was observed vigilantly.

While this report estimates the value of appraised assets, no assurances are expressed or
implied that the subject appraised assets, in fact, be sold at the stated estimated value.

We do not assume to have any responsibility to update this report for events &
circumstances occurring after the date of valuation.

This report and the conclusion of value arrived at herein are for the exclusive use of
concerned management of the company for the sole and specific purposes as noted herein.
This may not be used for any other purpose or by any other party for any purpose.
Furthermore, the report and conclusion of value should not be construed by the reader to be
investment advice in any manner whatsoever. The conclusion of value represents the
considered opinion of valuation firm, based on information furnished to them by the
company and other relevant sources.

Neither all nor any part nor content of this report should be disseminated to the public
through advertising media, public relations, news media, sales media, mail, direct transmittal,
or any other means of communication without the prior written consent and approval of us
(valuation firm).

Any future services regarding the subject matter of this report including, but not limited to
testimony or attendance in court shall not be required of us (valuation firm) unless previous
arrangement have been made in writing.

Except as noted in relevant areas, we have relied upon the representations of the owners,
management, and other third parties concerning the value and useful condition of all Land
Properties and Factory & Laboratory Building used in the business, except as specifically
stated to the contrary in this report. We have not attempted to confirm whether or not all
Land Properties and Factory & Laboratory Building of the company are free and clear from
mortgage liens and encumbrances or that the entity has good title to all assets.

13.00 VALUATION RESULTS AND INTERPRETATION
The details of valuation of Land Properties and Factory & Laboratory Building as quoted in the
scope of work paragraph of the report are depicted in the following manner:

13.1. Land Properties-Free Hold:
All lands properties belonging to the company are classified under the two broad categories named



Freehold and Leasehold Land Properties. The free hold land Properties measuring 361.75 decimal
are acquired by the Aramit Cement Limited. Any subsequent capital expenditure incurred for
developing the free-hold land properties in present condition is also added to this class of assets. A
brief description with regard to valuation of free-hold lands held by Aramit Cement Limited is given
below:

Location:

The free-hold land properties are located at 53, Kalurghat Heavy Industrial Estate, PO: Mohara,
Chattogram, Bangladesh. The entire land is located at west side of the Karnafully River and close to
factory premises of the Company.

Surroundings:

North: Plant of National Iron Industry Ltd.
South: Plant of Desh Garments Ltd.

East: Karnafully River.

West: Factory of Azim Group of Industries.

Area of Freehold Land Properties:
The total area of the Freehold land properties is 361.75 Decimals.

Mutated:
All the area of this land property has been mutated in favor of Aramit Cement Limited.

Factors Considered:

While undertaking the revaluation exercise of the Land Properties of the project we have takeninto
accounts the following fundamentals:

Location of the land properties;

Landscape and view;

Size of land properties;

Commercial importance & facilities available in and around the same;

Past trends and likely future prospects;

Infrastructural facilities prevailing in such area;

Demand / insufficiency of land in the respective area;

Development works done for the land; and

Recent sale or transfer price of compatible land properties adjacent to the appraised land
properties.

Highest and Best Use:

Presently company is using its leasehold land (below described) for manufacturing facilities of
Portland cement. In this view the highest and best use of the free-hold land belong to the company
are considered to be for setting up industrial undertakings that add high value in the economy.

Book Value:
The book value of Freehold land properties has been shown at Taka 19,787,225 as per books
records and financial statements.

Value Arrived:
Considering the relevant information we appraised the present value of freehold land properties at
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Taka 14.00 Lakh (approximate) per decimal for developed Industrial land. Accordingly the
aggregate present value of the Freehold land properties as possessed by Aramit Cement Limited
stands at Taka 506,450,000 as stated in details vide Annexure-1.

13.2. Land Properties-Lease Hold:

The company M/s Aramit Cement Limited acquired total 357.90 decimal (i.e.300.10 decimal land
propertiesin 1996 and 57.80 decimal land properties in 2001) of land properties from one affiliated
Company M/s. Aramit Limited through transfer process. The entire land was acquired in 1963 by
M/s. Aramit Limited from Chittagong Development Authority (CDA) under lease agreement for 99
years with transferring right subject to obtaining prior consent from them (CDA).Due to having
transferring right and remaining lease period for 33 years we have considered the lease-hold land
properties of 357.90 decimal under the valuation. A brief description with regard to valuation of
lease hold lands held by Aramit Cement Limited is given below:

Location:
The lease-hold land properties are located at 53, Kalurghat Heavy Industrial Estate, PO: Mohara,
Chattogram, Bangladesh. The entire land is located at west side of the Karnafully River.

Surroundings:

North: Aramit Power Limited Plant.

South: Boudary Wall.

East: Road and then National Iron & Steel Limited.
West: Desh Garments Limited.

Area of leasehold Land Properties:
The total area of the Freehold land properties is 357.90 Decimals.

Mutated:

All the area of this land property has been mutated in favor of Aramit Cement Limited.
Factors Considered:

While undertaking the revaluation of the lease-hold Land Properties of the project we have taken
into accounts the following fundamentals:

Location of the land properties;

Landscape and view;

Size of land properties;

Commercial importance & facilities available in and around the same;

Past trends and likely future prospects;

Infrastructural facilities prevailing in such area;

Demand / insufficiency of land in the respective area;

Development works done for the land; and

Recent sale or transfer price of compatible land properties adjacent to appraised land
properties.

Highest and Best Use:

Presently company is using its leasehold land for manufacturing facilities of Portland cement. In this
view the highest and best use of the free-hold land belong to the company are considered to be for
setting up industrial undertakings that add high value to the economy.
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Book Value:
The book value of Lease-hold land properties has been shown at Taka 10,591,305 as per books
record and financial statements.

Value Arrived:

Considering the relevant information we appraised the present value of Lease-hold land properties
at Taka 18.00 Lakh (approximate) per decimal for developed Industrial land. Accordingly the
aggregate present value of the Leasehold land properties as possessed by Aramit Cement Limited
stands at Taka 644,220,000 as stated in details vide Annexure-1.

13.02. Factory and Laboratory Building

We have found that the factory buildings and Laboratory building including other constructions are
in reasonably good condition on physical verification and well maintained by necessary repairs and
maintenance from year to year.

We have carried out the following procedures to ascertain the fair value of factory buildings and
laboratory building including other civil constructions:

. We and our engineering consultants have carried out physical verification of factory
buildings and laboratory building including other civil constructions.
o Our engineering consultants have measured the area of civil construction.

Engineering drawings of the factory buildings and laboratory building including other civil
constructions has been reviewed.

. Estimated useful life of the factory buildings and laboratory building including other civil
constructions has been estimated.

. Physical conditions of the factory buildings and laboratory building including other civil
constructions have been checked.
The building and other constructions held by Aramit Cement Limited are described as under
in the order of its subclasses:

a) Clinker, Gypsum Shed

b) Cement Mill-1

c) Cement Mill-2

d) Cement Silo (2 nos.)

e) Packing & Finishing section
f) Belt Conveyor Tower

g) Belt Conveyor Room

h) Silo Tower

i) Laboratory Building

j) Power Sub-Station

k) Septic Tank

)] Water Tank

m)  Woater Line

n) Generator Room Shed
o) Loading Shed & Delivery Office
p) Labour Toilet

q) Drainage System

r) Approach Road

s) Labour Shed

t) Clinker Shed-2

u) Boundary Wall & other
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Clinker, Gypsum Shed:

Clinker, Gypsum Shed was constructed in 1999 with RCC Foundation with Steel frame structure.
Total area of this building is 62,358 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement
cost of the building is estimated at Taka 1,800 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated
replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the
building Structure is arrived at Taka 56,122,200.

Cement Mill -1:

The Cement Mill-1 is a seven storied building and constructed in 1999 with full RCC
foundation. Total area of this building is 31,458 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the
replacement cost of the building is estimated at Taka 2,000 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated
estimated replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of
the building Structure is arrived at Taka 37,749,864.

Cement Mill -2:

The Cement Mill-2 is an eight storied building and constructed in 2017 with full RCC
foundation. Total area of this building is 33,883 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the
replacement cost of the building is estimated at Taka 2,000 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated
estimated replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of
the building Structure is arrived at Taka 65,055,514.

Cement Silo:

Cement Silo was constructed in 1999 with full RCC foundation. Total area of this building structure
is 16,006 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement cost of the building
structure is estimated at Taka 2,000 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated replacement
cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the building Structure
is arrived at Taka 192,207,200.

Packing & Finishing Section:
Packing & Finishing Section was constructed in 1999 with full RCC foundation. Total area of this
building is 11,242 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement cost of the
building is estimated at Taka 2,000 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated replacement
cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the building Structure
is arrived at Taka 13,490,400.

Belt Conveyor Tower:

Belt Conveyor Tower was constructed in 2017 with RCC foundation with Steel frame structure.
Total area of this building is 9,287 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement
cost of the building is estimated at Taka 1,800 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated
replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the
building Structure is arrived at Taka 15,880,001.

Belt Conveyor Room:

Belt Conveyor Room was constructed in 2017 with RCC foundation with Brick wall. Total area of
this building is 3,322 sq.ft. With required assistance of an expert the replacement cost of the
building is estimated at Taka 750 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated replacement cost
and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the building Structure is
arrived at Taka 2,325,400.
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Silo Tower:

Silo Tower was constructed in 2017 with full RCC foundation. Total area of this building is 5,237
sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement cost of the building is estimated at
Taka 2,000 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated replacement cost and other pertinent
information, total depreciated replacement cost of the building Structure is arrived at Taka
11,399,616.

Laboratory Building:

Laboratory Building was constructed in 2000 with RCC foundation and Brick wall. Total area of this
building is 5,288 sq.ft. However, the present replacement cost of Laboratory Building has not been
appraised due to having their remaining economic life less than 50% of total estimated economic
life as stipulated vide Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/... dated August 18,
2013 issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). Instead, book value of the
class of Factory and Laboratory Building has been treated as present replacement cost.

Power Sub-Station:

Power Sub-Station was constructed in 2000 with RCC foundation and Brick wall. Total area of this
building is 2,760 sq.ft. However, the present replacement cost of Power Sub-Station has not been
appraised due to having their remaining economic life less than 50% of total estimated economic
life as stipulated vide Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/... dated August 18,
2013 issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). Instead, book value of the
class of Factory and Laboratory Building has been treated as present replacement cost.

Septic Tank:

Septic Tank was constructed in 2001 with RCC foundation and Brick wall. Total area of the septic
tank is 250 sq.ft. However, the present replacement cost of Septic Tank has not been appraised due
to having their remaining economic life less than 50% of total estimated economic life as stipulated
vide Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/... dated August 18, 2013 issued by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). Instead, book value of the class of
Factory and Laboratory Building has been treated as present replacement cost.

Water Tank:

Water Tank was constructed in 2001 with RCC foundation and Brick wall. Total area of this water
tank is 300 sq.ft. However, the present replacement cost of Water Tank has not been appraised due
to having their remaining economic life less than 50% of total estimated economic life as stipulated
vide Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/... dated August 18, 2013 issued by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). Instead, book value of the class of
Factory and Laboratory Building has been treated as present replacement cost.

Water Line:

Water line was constructed in 2001 with RCC foundation and Brick wall. Total area of this water
line is 250 sq.ft. However, the present replacement cost of Water Line has not been appraised due
to having their remaining economic life less than 50% of total estimated economic life as stipulated
vide Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/... dated August 18, 2013 issued by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). Instead, book value of the class of
Factory and Laboratory Building has been treated as present replacement cost.
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Generator Room Shed:

Generator room shed was constructed in 2001 with RCC foundation and steel frame structure.
Total area of this building is 612 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement
cost of the generator room shed structure is estimated at Taka 1,800 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on
the stated estimated replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated
replacement cost of the generator room shed structure is arrived at Taka 605,880.

Loading Shed & Delivery Office:

Loading Shed & Delivery Office was constructed in 2001 with RCC foundation and steel frame
structure. Total area of this building structure is 5,206 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an
expert the replacement cost of the building is estimated at Taka 750 sq.ft. Accordingly, based onthe
stated estimated replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement
cost of the building Structure is arrived at Taka 2,147,475.

Labor Toilet:

Labor Toilet was constructed in 2001 with RCC foundation and Brick wall. Total area of this building
structure is 592 sq.ft. However, the present replacement cost of Labor Toilet has not been
appraised due to having their remaining economic life less than 50% of total estimated economic
life as stipulated vide Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/... dated August 18,
2013 issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). Instead, book value of the
classes of Factory and Laboratory Building has been treated as present replacement cost.

Drainage System:

Drainage system was constructed in 2001 with RCC Foundation and Brick wall. Total area of this
Drainage System is 11,200 sq.ft. However, the present replacement cost of Drainage System has
not been appraised due to having their remaining economic life less than 50% of total estimated
economic life as stipulated vide Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin/... dated
August 18, 2013 issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). Instead, book
value of the classes of Factory and Laboratory Building has been treated as present replacement
cost.

Approach Road
The Approach road was constructed in 2001 with full RCC casting by brick clips. Total area of this
road 13,870 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement cost of the building is
estimated at Taka 750 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated replacement cost and other
pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the building Structure is arrived at
Taka 6,657,600.

Labor Shed:

Labor shed was constructed in 2001 with RCC Foundation with Steel frame structure. Total area of
this building is 450 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement cost of the
building is estimated at Taka 1,800 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated replacement
cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the building Structure
is arrived at Taka 445,500.

Clinker Shed-2:
Clinker shed-2 was constructed in 2016 with RCC foundation and steel frame structure. Total area
of this building structure is 4,727 sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement



cost of the building is estimated at Taka 1,800 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated estimated
replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of the
building Structure is arrived at Taka 7,870,455.

Boundary wall & other:

Boundary wall & other was constructed in 2017 with RCC foundation and Brick wall. Total area of
this boundary wall & other is 3,556sq.ft. With the required assistance of an expert the replacement
cost of the boundary wall & other is estimated at Taka 500 sq.ft. Accordingly, based on the stated
estimated replacement cost and other pertinent information, total depreciated replacement cost of
the boundary wall & other structureis arrived at Taka 1,659,467.

Highest and best use:

Factory Buildings and other structure were specially designed for cement industry. Therefore, the
highest and best use of the buildings and other civil constructions are considered to be for
facilitating the present business operations of the company.

Book Value:

The book values of Factory and Laboratory Building including other civil constructions have been
shown at Taka 103,348,333 as at May 31, 2019 as per books and record maintained by the
company.

Value Arrived:

Considering the relevant factors and with the required assistance of expert the appraised value of
Factory and laboratory building including other structure would be Taka 240,978,286 as more
detailed described vide Annexure-2.

14.00 CONCLUSION

This valuation has been carried out without any prejudice and for the benefit to whom it may
concern. Putting in special efforts, valuation team leader with the assistance of all other team
members completed collection, verification, analysis and compilation of all relevant information
with regard to this assignment to arrive at a reasonable conclusion which ultimately happened.

We wish to place onrecord our thanks and appreciation of the courtesy & co-operation extended to

us by the concerned officials of Aramit Cement Limited during the course of our carrying out the
assignment.

—The End—
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MRH DEY & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Aramit Cement Limited
Summary of Revalued Assets
As at May 31, 2019

Revalued Book Value Revaluation

s s Anexine, o ount (Taka)  (Taks)  [Surplus (Taka)
1 Land Properties-Free Hold 1 506450000 19787225 486662775
2 Land Properties-Lease Hold 1 644,220,000 10,691,305 633,628,695
3 Factory & Laboratory Building 2 240978286 103,348,333 137,629,953

Total 1,391,648,286 133,726,863 1,257,921,423
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WEL2R4 N aramit cement limited
<y @)

Corporate Office & Factory

53, Kalurghat Heowy Industrial Estafe

P.Q : Mohara, Chottogram-4208, Bongladesh.

Share Office :

pROXY FO RM Green View Apartment, Flat # 4J

Sth Floor)House No. 39, Rood No. 24Block # CWS(EB),
Gulshan-1, Dhoka-1212, Bongladesh.

E-mail: Shares@aramitgroup.com

I/ We.

of.

belng a member of Aramit Cement Ltd. do hereby appoint Mr./Ms

as my / our PROXY to attend and vote for me/us and on my / our behalf at the 24™" AGM of the ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED to be held on December 22, 2020

(Tuesday) at 12.00 Noon through Digital Platform (Virtual) and at any adjourment threreof. As witness my/our hand this. day
of. 2020.

Signature of Shareholder(s)

No.of Shares held..............oe. Signature of PROXY
{ Follo No. l |

Revenue

or Stamp

lsoove. | [ [ [ [ [T TII[]]] 2000

Note: A member entitled to attend at the General Meeting may appolnt a PROXY to attend on his/her behalf. The Proxy form, duly stamped,
must be deposited at the Corporate Office of the ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED at least 72 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

Signature Verified

Authorized Signatory

(Signature of Shareholder (S) must in accordance with specimen signature with the Company)

WMELER aramit cement limited
(b7 2
Corporate Office & Factory

53, Kalurghat Heawvy Industrial Estate
P.O : Mohara, Chottogram-4208, Bonglodesh.
Share Office :

Green View Apariment, Flat # 4)
ARAMIT CEMENT Sth FloorHouse No. 39, Road No. 24Biock # CWS(8),
Gulshan-1, Dhoka-1212, Bongladesh.

SHAREHOLDER / PROXY ATTENDANCESLIp =7 reressermiaresn cem

| here by record my attendance at the 24t AGM of the ARAMIT CEMENT LIMITED to be held on December 22, 2020 at 12.00 Noon through
Digital Platform (Virtual).

Signature of Shareholder(s)
Mo. of Shares held.................

l Folio No. ] ‘
or

(e [ [T T T T TTTITITTLT] e
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ARAMIT CEMENT

aramit

cement limited

Registered Office & Factory

53, Kalurghat Heavy Industrial Estate
P.O : Mohara, Chattogram, Bangladesh
Tel : (88 031) 671950, 670473, 6703653, 672516
Fax:(88031) 671583

E-mail : info@aramitcement.com
www.aramitcement.com

Share Office

Green View Apartment

Flat-6J. Fifth Floor (North Side)

House-39 Road-24, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212
Tel : (88-02) 9887176, 9887176, 9881095,
Fax : (88-02) 9851551

E-mail : shares@aramitgroup.com



